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PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. Financial Statements
SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except for par value)
(unaudited)
May 31,
2018

November 30,
2017

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

354,176

$

550,688

Restricted cash

6,172

Short-term investments

3,940

5,475

2,712,550

2,846,371

Accounts receivable, net
Receivable from related parties
Inventories
Other current assets

5,837

161

77

2,129,779

2,162,626

220,573

168,704

5,427,351

5,739,778

Property and equipment, net

344,290

346,589

Goodwill

861,455

872,641

Intangible assets, net

525,867

583,051

Total current assets

Deferred tax assets
Other assets
$

Total assets

31,802

31,687

125,043

124,780

7,315,808

$

705,120

$

7,698,526

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Borrowings, current

$

Accounts payable

2,257,594

Payable to related parties

805,471
2,626,720

30,360

16,888

Accrued compensation and benefits

183,689

204,665

Other accrued liabilities

402,798

354,104

Income taxes payable
Total current liabilities
Long-term borrowings
Other long-term liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

60,262

33,359

3,639,823

4,041,207

1,106,622

1,136,089

170,283

124,008

87,605

113,527

5,004,333

5,414,831

—

—

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000 shares authorized, no shares issued or outstanding
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 41,172 and 41,092 shares issued as of May 31, 2018 and
November 30, 2017, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, 1,883 and 1,419 shares as of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

41

41

481,561

467,948

(124,801)

(77,133)

(90,265)

Retained earnings

(61,919)

2,044,939

Total stockholders’ equity

1,954,758

2,311,475
$

Total liabilities and equity
(Amounts may not add due to rounding)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).
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7,315,808

2,283,695
$

7,698,526
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except for per share amounts)
(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Revenue:
Products
Services

$

4,486,395
486,188

Total revenue
Cost of revenue:
Products
Services

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

$

3,458,243
478,025

May 31, 2018

$

8,535,158
989,795

May 31, 2017

$

6,504,864
952,273

4,972,583

3,936,268

9,524,953

7,457,137

(4,239,137)
(304,352)

(3,265,630)
(298,393)

(8,063,233)
(618,675)

(6,146,183)
(596,926)

429,094
(305,156)

372,245
(247,115)

843,045
(607,175)

714,028
(487,139)

Operating income
Interest expense and finance charges, net
Other expense, net

123,938
(16,375)
(1,446)

125,130
(8,962)
(206)

235,870
(33,826)
(2,624)

226,889
(17,144)
(529)

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

106,117
(12,424)

115,962
(42,814)

199,420
(81,293)

209,216
(74,279)

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

$

93,693

$

73,148

$

118,127

$

134,937

Basic

$

2.35

$

1.83

$

2.96

$

3.38

Diluted

$

2.34

$

1.83

$

2.94

$

3.37

Net income
Earnings per common share:

Weighted-average common shares outstanding:
39,505

Basic

39,533

39,742

Diluted
Cash dividends declared per share

$

0.35

39,599

39,711
$

0.25

39,859
$

(Amounts may not add due to rounding)
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).
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39,513

0.70

39,708
$

0.50
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(currency in thousands)
(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Net income
$
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities, net of taxes
of $0 for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
Change in unrealized gains (losses) of defined benefit plans, net of
taxes of $0 for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and
2017
Unrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedges during the period, net
of taxes of $(11) and $(1,925) for the three and six months ended May
31, 2018, respectively, and $387 and $(350) for the three and six
months ended May 31, 2017, respectively
Reclassification of net (gains) losses on cash flow hedges to net
income, net of tax expense (benefit) of $778 and $715 for the three
and six months ended May 31, 2018, respectively, and $(73) and
$(223) for the three and six months ended May 31, 2017, respectively

93,693

Total change in unrealized gains on cash flow hedges, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of taxes of $109 and
$86 for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, respectively,
and $61 and $(61) for the three and six months ended May 31, 2017,
respectively
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income

$

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

$

May 31, 2018

73,148

$

$

134,937

87

327

(55)

—

56

—

30

(739)

5,416

200

(1,917)

117

(1,740)

358

(1,887)

(622)

3,676

558

(42,764)

10,253

(31,967)

(44,564)

10,014

(28,346)

49,129

$

83,162

$

89,781

(Amounts may not add due to rounding)
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).
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May 31, 2017

118,127

490

(13)

15,871
16,906
$

151,843
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(currency in thousands)
(unaudited)
Six Months Ended
May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

$

118,127

$

134,937

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

97,506

71,429

Share-based compensation

10,725

8,327

Provision for doubtful accounts
Deferred income taxes
Unrealized foreign exchange (gains) losses
Others

3,852

2,983

(27,785)

(1,263)

1,665

(2,883)

(3,639)

(1,112)

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisition of businesses:
Accounts receivable, including from related parties
Inventories
Accounts payable, including to related parties
Other assets and liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

111,551

(24,434)

30,537

(368,202)

(342,083)

(8,769)

62,254

43,354

62,710

(145,633)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments

(50)

(4,190)

Proceeds from maturity of investments

4,659

1,962

Purchases of property and equipment

(50,020)

(45,300)

(5,922)

6,500

Acquisition of businesses, net of refunds
Others

802
Net cash used in investing activities

922

(50,531)

(40,106)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from borrowings

4,924,632

3,588,022

Repayments of borrowings

(5,052,890)

(3,465,215)

(27,946)

(19,897)

(5,203)

(1,350)

Dividends paid
Decrease in book overdrafts
Repurchases of common stock

(45,985)

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Repurchases of common stock for tax withholdings on equity awards

—

2,888

1,860

(1,683)

(3,611)

Others

—
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities

1,827

(206,187)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

101,636

(2,176)

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash

6,885

(196,184)

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period

(77,218)

556,742

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period

387,167

$

360,558

$

309,949

$

1,695

$

1,669

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing activities:
Accrued costs for property and equipment purchases

(Amounts may not add due to rounding)
The accompanying Notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited).
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
For the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION:
SYNNEX Corporation (together with its subsidiaries, herein referred to as “SYNNEX” or the “Company”) is a business process services company
headquartered in Fremont, California and has operations in North and South America, Asia-Pacific and Europe.
The Company has two reportable segments: Technology Solutions and Concentrix. The Technology Solutions segment distributes a broad range of
information technology systems and products and also provides systems design and integration solutions. The Concentrix segment offers a portfolio of
strategic solutions and end-to-end global business outsourcing services focused on customer engagement, process optimization, technology innovation, front
and back-office automation and business transformation to clients in ten identified industry verticals.
The accompanying interim unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements as of May 31, 2018 and for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and
2017 have been prepared by the Company in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The amounts as
of November 30, 2017 have been derived from the Company’s annual audited financial statements. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally
included in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) in the United States have been condensed
or omitted in accordance with such rules and regulations. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements
reflect all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to state fairly the financial position of the Company and its results of
operations and cash flows as of and for the periods presented. These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annual audited financial
statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2017.
Interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of financial results for a full year, and the Company makes no representations related thereto.
NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
For a discussion of the Company's significant accounting policies, please see the discussion in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended November 30, 2017. Accounting pronouncements adopted during the six months ended May 31, 2018 are discussed below.
Concentration of credit risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentration of credit risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable and derivative instruments.
The Company’s cash and cash equivalents and derivative instruments are transacted and maintained with financial institutions with high credit
standing, and their compositions and maturities are regularly monitored by management. Through May 31, 2018, the Company had not experienced any
credit losses on such deposits and derivative instruments.
Accounts receivable include amounts due from customers and original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) vendors primarily in the technology industry.
The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and limits the amount of credit extended when deemed necessary,
but generally requires no collateral. The Company also maintains allowances for potential credit losses. In estimating the required allowances, the Company
takes into consideration the overall quality and aging of the receivable portfolio, the existence of a limited amount of credit insurance and specifically
identified customer and vendor risks. Through May 31, 2018, such losses have been within management’s expectations.
One customer accounted for 18% of the Company's total revenue during both the three and six months ended May 31, 2018. During the three and six
months ended May 31, 2017, the same customer accounted for 21% and 19% of the Company's total revenue, respectively. Products purchased from the
Company’s largest OEM supplier, HP Inc., accounted for approximately 12% of total revenue during both the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and
approximately 13% and 14% of total revenue during the three and six months ended May 31, 2017, respectively.
7
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
For the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)
As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, one customer comprised 14% and 12%, respectively, of the total accounts receivable balance.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is computed based on the weighted-average method. Inventories are comprised
of finished goods and work-in-process. Finished goods include products purchased for resale, system components purchased for both resale and for use in the
Company’s systems design and integration business, and completed systems. Work-in-process inventories are not material to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications have been made to prior period amounts in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows to conform to current period
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on cash flows from operating, investing or financing activities as previously reported.
Recently adopted accounting pronouncement
In March 2016, the Financial Accounting Standard Board (the “FASB”), issued guidance which changes the accounting for share-based payment
transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, and classification in the Consolidated Statement
of Cash Flows. The guidance requires the income tax effects of changes in the Company's stock price from the grant date to the vesting date of the employee
stock compensation to be recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations within income tax expense instead of within additional paid-in capital and
changed its classification in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows from financing activities to operating activities. The guidance is effective for interim
and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and early adoption is permitted. The Company adopted this guidance in the first quarter of fiscal year
2018 and recorded excess tax benefits within income tax expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in fiscal year 2018 and classified such benefits
in operating activities in the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, on a prospective basis. The adoption did not have a material impact on the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements.
Recently issued accounting pronouncements
In June 2016, the FASB issued a new credit loss standard that replaces the incurred loss impairment methodology in current GAAP. The new impairment
model requires immediate recognition of estimated credit losses expected to occur for most financial assets and certain other instruments. It is effective for
annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 and interim periods within those annual periods. Early adoption for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2018 is permitted. Entities will apply the standard’s provisions as a cumulative-effect adjustment to retained earnings as of the beginning of
the first effective reporting period. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance.
In February 2016, the FASB issued a new standard which revises various aspects of accounting for leases. The most significant impact to the Company’s
Consolidated Financial Statements relates to the recognition by a lessee of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for virtually all of its leases other than
short-term leases. The liability will be equal to the present value of lease payments. The asset will be based on the liability, subject to adjustment, such as for
initial direct costs. Consistent with current guidance, the recognition, measurement, and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a
lessee primarily will depend on its classification. For income statement purposes, operating leases will result in a straight line expense while finance leases
will result in a front-loaded expense pattern. This accounting standard will be applicable to the Company at the beginning of its first quarter of fiscal year
2020 using a modified retrospective approach and early adoption is permitted. The Company expects that most of its operating lease commitments will be
subject to the new standard and recognized as operating lease liabilities and right-of-use assets upon adoption and is currently evaluating the impact on its
Consolidated Financial Statements upon the adoption of this new standard.
In January 2016, the FASB issued new guidance which amends various aspects of the recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of
financial instruments. With respect to the Company’s consolidated financial statements, the most significant impact relates to the accounting for equity
investments (other than those that are consolidated or accounted under the equity method) which will be measured at fair value through earnings. The new
guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2017, with early adoption permitted
only for certain provisions. The amendments should be applied by means of a cumulative-effect adjustment to the balance sheet as of the
8
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
For the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)
beginning of the fiscal year of adoption, with other amendments related specifically to equity securities without readily determinable fair values applied
prospectively. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the new guidance.
In May 2014, the FASB issued a comprehensive new revenue recognition standard for contracts with customers that will supersede most current revenue
recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The core principle of this standard is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. To achieve this core principle, the standard provides a five-step analysis of transactions to determine when and how revenue is
recognized. Other major provisions include the capitalization and amortization of certain contract costs, ensuring the time value of money is considered in
the transaction price, and allowing estimates of variable consideration to be recognized before contingencies are resolved in certain circumstances. This
guidance also requires enhanced disclosures regarding the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from an entity’s contracts
with customers. In August 2015, the FASB amended this accounting standard and postponed the implementation date to fiscal years, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2017. Early application for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2016 is permitted. The standard permits the use of either the retrospective or cumulative effect transition method. This accounting standard will
be applicable to the Company at the beginning of its first quarter of fiscal year 2019. The Company has established an implementation team and engaged
external advisers to assess the Company’s business and contracts. The Company is in the process of determining the transition method and evaluating the
impact of several aspects of the standard including principal versus agent considerations, identification of performance obligations and the determination of
when control of goods and services transfers to the Company’s customers.
NOTE 3—ACQUISITIONS:
Fiscal 2017 acquisitions
On September 1, 2017, the Company acquired the North America and Latin America distribution businesses of Datatec Limited, a public limited
company incorporated in the Republic of South Africa (“Datatec”), through the purchase of 100% of the shares of its subsidiary, Westcon Group, Inc., a
Delaware company (“Westcon-Comstor Americas”) for a purchase price of approximately $633,568. The purchase price was comprised of $602,739 paid in
cash, fair value of contingent consideration payable of $33,098 and a refund of $2,269 receivable from Datatec towards the settlement of certain preacquisition intra Datatec group transactions. During the six months ended May 31, 2018, the Company received $2,269 from Datatec and classified this
amount in investing activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The Company also recorded measurement period adjustments of $961 to the
fair value of acquired net tangible assets with a corresponding reduction to goodwill. Up to May 31, 2018, acquisition-related and integration expenses
were $4,941, which included a net benefit of $588 and a charge of $1,217 during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018. The acquisition-related and
integration charges were recorded in “Selling, general and administrative expenses,” while a benefit of $2,634 was recorded in "Interest expense and other
finance charges, net" due to the de-designation of an interest rate swap associated with the planned termination of the Westcon-Comstor Americas debt.
The preliminary purchase price allocation is based upon a preliminary valuation and the Company’s estimates are subject to change within the
measurement period (up to one year from the acquisition date). The primary areas of the preliminary purchase price allocation that are not yet finalized relate
to the fair value of certain tangible assets acquired, liabilities assumed, contingent consideration payable, if any, the valuation of intangible assets acquired
and related deferred income taxes. The Company expects to continue to obtain information for the purpose of determining the fair value of the net assets
acquired during the measurement period.
Under the terms of the acquisition agreement with Datatec, contingent consideration of up to $200,000 would be payable in cash if certain gross profit
targets were achieved for the twelve-month period ended February 28, 2018. The Company is in the process of finalizing the amount of contingent
consideration payable, if any.
On July 31, 2017, the Company acquired 100% of Tigerspike Pty Ltd (“Tigerspike”), a digital products company incorporated in Australia,
specializing in strategy, experience design, development and systems integration, for a preliminary purchase price of $68,457, including a holdback amount
which was payable to the sellers upon the finalization of post-closing adjustments. During the first quarter of fiscal year 2018, the Company recorded certain
immaterial measurement period
9

Table of Contents

SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
For the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)
adjustments to the fair value of assumed net tangible liabilities, decreasing goodwill by $631 and the purchase price by $1,443, resulting in a final purchase
price of $67,014, and paid the remaining holdback amount of $8,191 to the sellers.
NOTE 4—SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION:
The Company recognizes share-based compensation expense for all share-based awards made to employees and directors, including employee stock
options, restricted stock awards, restricted stock units, performance-based restricted stock units and employee stock purchases, based on estimated fair values.
The following table summarizes the number of share-based awards granted under the Company’s 2013 Stock Incentive Plan, as amended, during the
three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017, and the grant-date fair value of those awards:
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018
Fair value of
grants

Shares awarded

Stock options
Restricted stock
awards
Restricted stock
units

38

$

20
—
58

$

Six Months Ended
May 31, 2017
Fair value of
grants

Shares awarded

1,050

—

1,896

21

—

5

2,946

26

May 31, 2018

$

$

Shares awarded

—

38

2,250

22

521

22

2,771

82

May 31, 2017

Fair value of
grants

$

$

Fair value of
grants

Shares awarded

1,050

—

2,106

22

2,554

34

5,710

56

$

—
2,384
3,937

$

6,321

The Company recorded share-based compensation expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and six months ended May 31,
2018 and 2017 as follows:
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

Total share-based compensation
Tax effect on share-based compensation

$

5,645
(1,565)

$

4,060
(1,498)

$

10,780
(3,112)

$

8,376
(2,973)

Net effect on net income

$

4,080

$

2,562

$

7,668

$

5,403

Substantially all of the share-based compensation expense was recorded in “Selling, general and administrative expenses” in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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SYNNEX CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS---(continued)
For the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
(currency and share amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(unaudited)
NOTE 5—BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS:
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash
The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported within the Consolidated Balance Sheets that sum to
the total of the same amounts shown in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:
As of
May 31, 2018

November 30, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Restricted cash included in other assets

$

354,176
6,172
210

$

550,688
5,837
217

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash shown in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

$

360,558

$

556,742

Restricted cash balances relate primarily to temporary restrictions caused by the timing of lockbox collections under borrowing arrangements and the
issuance of bank guarantees and government grants.
As of
May 31, 2018

Accounts receivable, net:
Accounts receivable
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts
Less: Allowance for sales returns

November 30, 2017

$

2,777,696
(17,053)
(48,093)

$

2,918,703
(19,193)
(53,139)

$

2,712,550

$

2,846,371

As of
May 31, 2018

Property and equipment, net:
Land
Equipment, computers and software
Furniture and fixtures
Buildings, building improvements and leasehold improvements
Construction-in-progress

$

Total property and equipment, gross
Less: Accumulated depreciation

25,814
316,355
65,870
279,391
17,047

November 30, 2017

$

704,477
(360,187)
$

344,290

25,922
306,665
60,892
270,649
12,049
676,177
(329,588)

$

346,589

Depreciation expense was $22,596 and $44,520 for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and $19,413 and $38,873 for the three and six
months ended May 31, 2017.
Goodwill:
Technology Solutions

Concentrix

Total

Balance as of November 30, 2017
Additions/adjustments from acquisitions (See Note 3)
Foreign exchange translation

$

437,225
(961)
(4,168)

$

435,416
(631)
(5,426)

$

872,641
(1,592)
(9,594)

Balance as of May 31, 2018

$

432,096

$

429,359

$

861,455
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As of May 31, 2018
Gross
Amounts

Intangible assets, net:
Customer relationships and lists
Vendor lists
Technology
Other intangible assets

As of November 30, 2017

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Amounts

Gross
Amounts

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Amounts

$

624,626
178,979
24,528
35,996

$

(275,510)
(46,381)
(7,731)
(8,640)

$

349,116
132,598
16,797
27,356

$

619,431
180,041
38,041
33,745

$

(236,282)
(39,016)
(6,519)
(6,390)

$

383,149
141,025
31,522
27,355

$

864,129

$

(338,262)

$

525,867

$

871,258

$

(288,207)

$

583,051

Amortization expense was $26,276 and $52,986 for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and $16,069 and $32,556 for the three and six
months ended May 31, 2017.
Estimated future amortization expense of the Company's intangible assets is as follows:
Fiscal Years Ending November 30,

2018 (remaining six months)
2019
2020
2021
2022
thereafter

$

53,455
89,153
81,381
74,118
63,839
163,921

Total

$

525,867

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
The components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of taxes, are as follows:
Unrealized gains on
available-for-sale
securities, net of taxes

Unrecognized defined
benefit plan costs, net
of taxes

Unrealized gains on
cash flow hedges, net
of taxes

Balance as of November 30, 2017
Other comprehensive gain (loss) before
reclassification
Reclassification of (gains) losses from Other
comprehensive income (loss)

$

$

$

Balance as of May 31, 2018

$

2,119

(2,313)

(55)

—

—
2,064

(2,313)

$

5,416

—
$

386

Foreign currency
translation
adjustment, net of
taxes

4,062

Total

$

(31,967)

(1,740)
$

(62,111)

(26,606)

—
$

(94,078)

(1,740)
$

Reclassifications of (gains) losses on cash flow hedges into earnings are recorded in "Interest expense and finance charges, net" in the Company's
"Consolidated Statements of Operations."
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NOTE 6—INVESTMENTS:
The carrying amount of the Company’s investments is shown in the table below:
As of
May 31, 2018
Adjusted Cost
Basis

Short-term investments:
Trading securities
Held-to-maturity investments
Long-term investments in "Other assets:"
Available-for-sale securities
Held-to-maturity investments
Cost-method investments

Unrealized
Gains

$

158
958

$

2,824
—

$

2,240
5,316
33,625

$

2,448
—
—

November 30, 2017

Unrealized
Losses

$

Carrying
Value

Adjusted Cost
Basis

Unrealized
Gains (Losses)

—
—

$

2,982
958

$

—
5,475

$

113
—
—

$

4,575
5,316
33,625

$

972
5,189
33,817

$

—
—

2,404
(225)
—

Carrying
Value

$

—
5,475

$

3,376
5,189
33,817

Short-term trading securities consist of the Company's equity interest in a company obtained through a stock swap arrangement, whereby the
Company's investment in the equity security of a private entity, classified as a long-term cost-method investment, was acquired by the investee's parent for
equivalent shares of the parent company, for which the fair value is readily determinable. Short-term held-to-maturity investments primarily consist of term
deposits with maturities from the date of purchase greater than three months and less than one year. These term deposits are held until the maturity date and
are not traded. Long-term available-for-sale securities primarily consist of investments in other companies’ equity securities and foreign government bonds
purchased pursuant to local regulations, maturing in fiscal year 2023. Long-term held-to-maturity investments consist of term deposits with maturities not
exceeding one year. These term deposits are renewed due to certain restrictions under the terms of an acquisition arrangement. Long-term cost-method
investments consist of investments in equity securities of private entities.
Trading and available-for-sale securities are recorded at fair value in each reporting period and therefore the carrying value of these securities equals
their fair value. Available for sale securities in a continuous unrealized loss position for longer than 12 months are not material. For cost-method investments,
the Company records an impairment charge when the decline in fair value is determined to be other-than-temporary. The fair value of cost-method
investments is based on an internal valuation of the investees.
The following table summarizes the total gains recorded in “Other expense, net” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for changes in the fair
value of the Company's trading investment:
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Gains on trading securities

$

2,824

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

$

—

May 31, 2018

$

2,824

May 31, 2017

$

—

Cash flows from purchases and maturities of available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are classified as cash flows from investing activities and
reported gross on a combined basis as these principally represent cash flows from held-to-maturity securities.
NOTE 7—DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS:
In the ordinary course of business, the Company is exposed to foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, equity risk and credit risk. The Company’s
transactions in most of its foreign operations are primarily denominated in local currency. The Company enters into transactions, and owns monetary assets
and liabilities, that are denominated in currencies other than the legal entity’s functional currency. The Company may enter into forward contracts, option
contracts, swaps, or other derivative
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instruments to offset a portion of the risk on expected future cash flows, on net investments in certain foreign subsidiaries and on certain existing assets and
liabilities. However, the Company may choose not to hedge certain exposures for a variety of reasons including, but not limited to, accounting
considerations and the prohibitive economic cost of hedging particular exposures. There can be no assurance the hedges will offset more than a portion of the
financial impact resulting from movements in foreign currency exchange or interest rates.
All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of a derivative are recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations as “Other expense, net” or as a component of “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets, as discussed below.
As part of its risk management strategy, the Company uses short-term forward contracts to offset the foreign exchange risk on assets and liabilities
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities. These forward-exchange contracts are not designated as hedging
instruments. The forward exchange contracts are recorded at fair value in each reporting period and any gains or losses, resulting from the changes in fair
value, are recorded in earnings in the period of change.
The Company also uses interest rate swaps to economically convert portion of its variable-rate debt to fixed-rate debt. The swaps have maturities up to
September 2022. These swaps may be designated as cash flow hedges of the variability in interest payments due to changes in the contractually specified
interest rates of the Company's debt. Gains and losses on cash flow hedges are recorded in “Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)” until the
hedged item is recognized in earnings. Deferred gains and losses associated with cash flow hedges of interest expense are recognized in “Interest expense and
finance charges, net” in the same period as the related expense is recognized.
Derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges must be de-designated as hedges when it is probable the forecasted hedged transaction will not
occur in the initially identified time period or within a subsequent two-month time period. Deferred gains and losses in “Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss)” associated with such derivative instruments are reclassified immediately into “Interest expense and finance charges, net.” Any subsequent
changes in fair value of such derivative instruments are reflected in “Interest expense and finance charges, net” unless they are re-designated as hedges of
other transactions.
Generally, the Company does not use derivative instruments to cover equity risk and credit risk. The Company’s policy is not to allow the use of
derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. The fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments are also disclosed in Note 8.
The following table summarizes the fair value of the Company’s derivative instruments as of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017:
Fair Value as of
Balance Sheet Line Item

May 31, 2018

Derivative instruments not designated as hedging instruments
Foreign exchange forward contracts
Other current assets
Other accrued liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
Interest rate swap
Other assets (notional value: $100,000)
Derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges
Interest rate swaps
Other current assets
Other assets
Other accrued liabilities
Other long-term liabilities
14

November 30, 2017

$
$
$

5,088
977
—

$
$
$

1,483
1,194
1,372

$

3,681

$

—

$
$
$
$

636
3,980
—
—

$
$
$
$

—
3,484
389
1,996
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The notional amounts of the foreign exchange forward contracts that were outstanding as of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017 were $395,521 and
$248,069, respectively. The notional amounts represent the gross amounts of foreign currency, including the Brazilian Real, Indian Rupee, Canadian Dollar,
Philippines Peso, Mexican peso, British Pound, Chinese Yuan, and Euro, that will be bought or sold at maturity. The contracts mature in six months or less. In
relation to its forward contracts not designated as hedging instruments, the Company recorded net gains of $8,709 and $5,675, respectively, during the three
and six months ended May 31, 2018 and net losses of $2 and $2,199, respectively, during the three and six months ended May 31, 2017, in “Other expense,
net.”
As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, the Company had interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges, with aggregate notional amounts of
$500,000 and $600,000, respectively. The swaps have maturities up to September 2022. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, the Company
recorded losses before taxes of $20 and gains before taxes of $7,457, respectively, in “Other comprehensive income (loss)” related to changes in the fair value
of its derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2017, the Company recorded
losses before taxes of $1,009 and gains before taxes of $908, respectively, in “Other comprehensive income (loss)” related to changes in the fair value of its
derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedging instruments. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, the Company de-designated a
swap with a notional value of $100,000 and reclassified deferred gains before taxes of $2,634 into “Interest expense and finance charges, net.” Existing gains
in "Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)" that are expected to be reclassified into earnings in the normal course of business within the next twelve
months are not material.
The net effect on earnings of the interest rate swaps are presented in "Interest expense and finance charges, net." The net earnings effect is shown in the
following table at settlement values:
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Gains (losses) reclassified from "Accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss)" into income
Total "Interest expense and finance charges, net"

2,695
(16,375)

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

(191)
(8,962)

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

2,455
(33,826)

(582)
(17,144)

In the Consolidated Balance Sheets, the Company does not offset derivative assets against liabilities in master netting arrangements. If derivative
exposures covered by a qualifying master netting agreement had been netted in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, the total derivative asset
and liability positions would have been reduced by $910 each as of May 31, 2018 and $1,352 each as of November 30, 2017.
Credit exposure for derivative financial instruments is limited to the amounts, if any, by which the counterparties’ obligations under the contracts
exceed our obligations to the counterparties. We manage the potential risk of credit losses through careful evaluation of counterparty credit standing and
selection of counterparties from a limited group of financial institutions.
NOTE 8—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:
The Company’s fair value measurements are classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:
Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Quoted prices in markets that are not active, or inputs which are observable, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the
asset or liability;
Level 3: Prices or valuation techniques that require inputs that are both significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable (i.e., supported by
little or no market activity).
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The following table summarizes the valuation of the Company’s investments and financial instruments that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis:
As of May 31, 2018

As of November 30, 2017

Fair value measurement category
Total

Assets:
Cash equivalents
Trading securities
Available-for-sale securities
Forward foreign currency exchange
contracts
Interest rate swaps
Liabilities:
Forward foreign currency exchange
contracts
Interest rate swaps
Contingent consideration payable

$

354,176
2,982
4,575

Level 1

$

354,176
2,982
4,575

5,088
8,297

$

977
—
33,098

Level 2

$

—
—

$

—
—
—

—
—
—

Level 3

$

5,088
8,297

$

977
—
—

Fair value measurement category

—
—
—

Total

$

—
—

$

—
—
33,098

157,935
—
3,376

Level 1

$

1,483
3,484

$

2,566
2,385
33,098

Level 2

157,935
—
3,376

$

—
—

$

—
—
—

—
—
—

Level 3

$

1,483
3,484

$

2,566
2,385
—

—
—
—
—
—

$

—
—
33,098

The Company’s cash equivalents consist primarily of highly liquid investments in money market funds and term deposits with maturity periods of three
months or less. The carrying values of cash equivalents approximate fair value since they are near their maturity. Investments in trading and available-for-sale
securities consist of equity securities and are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices. The fair values of forward exchange contracts are measured
based on the foreign currency spot and forward rates quoted by the banks or foreign currency dealers. Fair values of long-term foreign currency exchange
contract and interest rate swaps are measured using standard valuation models using inputs that are readily available in public markets, or can be derived
from observable market transactions, including the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) spot and forward rates. The effect of nonperformance risk on
the fair value of derivative instruments was not material as of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017.
Contingent consideration payable represents acquisition-related future potential earn-out payments. The fair value of the contingent consideration
liability was based on a probabilistic analysis using an option pricing model as implemented via a Monte Carlo simulation. The model considered an
expected case forecast for the remainder of the earn-out period, estimated volatility around the forecast, a measure of systematic risk as captured by a market
price of risk adjustment, and a discount rate including non-performance risk. There was no change in fair value during the six months ended May 31, 2018.
The carrying values of held-to-maturity securities with maturities less than one year, accounts receivable, accounts payable and short-term debt
approximate fair value due to their short maturities and interest rates which are variable in nature. The fair value of long-term held-to-maturity investments in
foreign government bonds is based on quoted market prices. The carrying value of the Company’s term loans approximate their fair value since they bear
interest rates that are similar to existing market rates.
During the six months ended May 31, 2018, there were no transfers between the fair value measurement category levels.
NOTE 9—ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE ARRANGEMENTS:
The Company has an uncommitted supply-chain financing program with a global financial institution under which trade accounts receivable of certain
customers and their affiliates may be acquired, without recourse, by the financial institution. Available capacity under this program is dependent on the level
of our trade accounts receivable with these customers and the financial institution’s willingness to purchase such receivables. As of May 31, 2018 and
November 30, 2017, accounts receivable sold to and held by the financial institution under this program were $32,417 and $49,826, respectively. Discount
fees related to the sale of trade accounts receivable under this facility are included in “Interest expense and finance charges,
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net” in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017, discount fees were not material to the
Company's results of operations.
SYNNEX Infotec, the Company's Japanese Technology Solutions subsidiary, has arrangements with financial institutions for the sale and financing of
approved accounts receivable and notes receivable. The amounts outstanding under these arrangements that were sold, but not collected, as of May 31, 2018
and November 30, 2017 were $2,907 and $2,306, respectively.
The Company also has other financing agreements in North America with financial institutions (“Flooring Companies”) to allow certain customers of
the Company to finance their purchases directly with the Flooring Companies. Under these agreements, the Flooring Companies pay to the Company the
selling price of products sold to customers, less a discount, within approximately 15 to 30 days from the date of sale. The Company is contingently liable to
repurchase inventory sold under flooring agreements in the event of any default by its customers under the agreement and such inventory being repossessed
by the Flooring Companies. Please see Note 17 for further information.
The following table summarizes the net sales financed through flooring agreements and the flooring fees incurred:
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Net sales financed
Flooring fees(1)

$

355,720
2,287

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

$

287,027
2,058

May 31, 2018

$

720,204
4,205

May 31, 2017

$

556,420
3,761

____________________________________
(1) Flooring fees are included within “Interest expense and finance charges, net.”

As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, accounts receivable subject to flooring agreements were $94,726 and $65,684, respectively.
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NOTE 10—BORROWINGS:
Borrowings consist of the following:
As of
May 31, 2018

November 30, 2017

SYNNEX United States accounts receivable securitization arrangement
SYNNEX Canada accounts receivable securitization arrangement
Westcon-Comstor North America revolving line of credit facility
Westcon-Comstor Latin America revolving lines of credit facilities
SYNNEX Japan credit facility - revolving line of credit component
Concentrix India revolving lines of credit facilities
SYNNEX United States credit agreement - current portion of term loan component
SYNNEX Japan credit facility - term loan component
Other borrowings

$

546,200
—
—
—
34,007
—
60,000
55,147
9,766

$

288,400
19,389
220,241
78,407
52,426
12,000
60,000
53,314
21,294

Borrowings, current

$

705,120

$

805,471

SYNNEX United States credit agreement - term loan component
Other term debt

$

1,110,000
574

$

1,140,000
569

Long-term borrowings, before unamortized debt discount and issuance costs
Less: unamortized debt discount and issuance costs

1,110,574
(3,952)
$

Long-term borrowings

1,106,622

1,140,569
(4,480)
$

1,136,089

SYNNEX United States accounts receivable securitization arrangement
In the United States, the Company has an accounts receivable securitization program to provide additional capital for its operations (the “U.S. AR
Arrangement”). Prior to the amendment described in this paragraph, under the terms of the U.S. AR Arrangement, the Company’s subsidiary that is the
borrower under this facility could borrow up to a maximum of $600,000 based upon eligible trade accounts receivable denominated in United States dollars.
In addition, the U.S. AR Arrangement included an accordion feature to allow requests for an increase in the lenders' commitment by an additional $120,000.
In May 2018, the U.S. AR Arrangement was amended to increase the maximum borrowing amount to $850,000 and the accordion feature was increased to
$150,000. The amendment also extended the expiration date of the U.S. AR Arrangement from November 2019 to May 2020. The effective borrowing cost
under the U.S. AR Arrangement is a blended rate based upon the composition of the lenders that includes prevailing dealer commercial paper rates and a rate
based upon LIBOR, provided that LIBOR shall not be less than zero. In addition, a program fee of 0.75% per annum based on the used portion of the
commitment, and a facility fee of 0.35% per annum is payable on the adjusted commitment of the lenders.
Under the terms of the U.S. AR Arrangement, the Company and two of its U.S. subsidiaries sell, on a revolving basis, their receivables (other than certain
specifically excluded receivables) to a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote subsidiary. The borrowings are funded by pledging all of the rights, title and
interest in and to the receivables acquired by the Company's bankruptcy-remote subsidiary as security. Any amounts received under the U.S. AR Arrangement
are recorded as debt on the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets.
SYNNEX Canada accounts receivable securitization arrangement
In May 2017, SYNNEX Canada Limited (“SYNNEX Canada”) entered into an accounts receivable securitization program with a bank to borrow up to
CAD65,000, or $50,158, in exchange for the transfer of eligible trade accounts receivable, on an ongoing revolving basis through May 10, 2020. The
program included an accordion feature to allow a request to increase the bank's commitment by an additional CAD25,000, or $19,292. In May 2018, the
agreement was amended to increase the bank's purchase commitment to CAD100,000, or $77,166. The accordion feature was amended to allow requests to
increase the bank's commitment by up to an additional CAD50,000, or $38,583. Any amounts received under this arrangement are recorded as debt on the
Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets. The effective borrowing cost is based on the weighted average of the Canadian Dollar Offered Rate plus a margin of
2.00% per annum and the prevailing lender commercial paper rates. In addition,
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SYNNEX Canada is obligated to pay a program fee of 0.75% per annum based on the used portion of the commitment. It will pay a fee of 0.40% per annum
for any unused portion of the commitment up to CAD60,000, or $46,300, and when the unused portion exceeds CAD60,000, or $46,300, a fee of 0.40% on
the first CAD25,000, or $19,292, of the unused portion and a fee of 0.55% per annum of the remaining unused commitment.
Westcon-Comstor North America revolving line of credit facility
In connection with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas effective September 1, 2017, the Company assumed a syndicated bank credit facility
of some of the North American subsidiaries the Company acquired, comprising a $350,000 commitment for a revolving credit facility, maturing in January
2021. In May 2018, as a result of its integration activities, the Company terminated this facility. Interest on the Westcon-Comstor North America facility was
based on LIBOR, plus a margin which could range from 1.25% to 1.75%, or an index rate, plus a margin which could range from 0.25% to 0.75%, at the
borrowers option, and a commitment fee of 0.20%.
Westcon-Comstor Latin America revolving lines of credit facilities
In connection with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas effective September 1, 2017, the Company also assumed credit facilities of some of
the Central and South American subsidiaries the Company acquired (the "Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities"). The Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities
maintained with financial institutions in the respective countries are denominated in local currency of such countries or United States Dollars and aggregate
to $77,635 in revolving commitments. One of the Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities comprising $40,000 in revolving commitments matures in February
2020. The remaining Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities aggregating $37,635 in revolving commitments mature in one year or less. The Company
guarantees the obligations under these credit facilities. The terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary from country to country, depending on local
market conditions, and the interest rates range from 4.90% to 12.74%. Subsequent to May 31, 2018, facilities aggregating $4,304 in revolving commitments
were terminated by the Company.
SYNNEX Japan credit facility
SYNNEX Infotec has a credit agreement with a group of financial institutions for a maximum commitment of ¥14,000,000, or $128,676. The credit
facility is comprised of a ¥6,000,000, or $55,147, term loan and a ¥8,000,000, or $73,529, short-term revolving credit facility. The interest rate for the term
loan and revolving credit facility is based on the Tokyo Interbank Offered Rate, plus a margin of 0.70% per annum. The unused line fee on the revolving
credit facility is 0.10% per annum. This credit facility expires in November 2018. The term loan can be repaid at any time prior to the expiration date without
penalty. The Company has guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX Infotec under this facility.
Concentrix India revolving lines of credit facilities
The Company's Indian subsidiaries have credit facilities with a financial institution to borrow up to an aggregate amount of $22,000. The interest rate
under these facilities is the higher of the bank's minimum lending rate or LIBOR, plus a margin of 0.9% per annum. The Company guarantees the obligations
under these credit facilities. These credit facilities can be terminated at any time by the Company’s Indian subsidiaries or the financial institution.
SYNNEX United States credit agreement
In the United States, the Company has a senior secured credit agreement (the "U.S. Credit Agreement") with a group of financial institutions. The U.S.
Credit Agreement, as amended from time to time, includes a $600,000 commitment for a revolving credit facility and $1,200,000 term loan. The Company
may request incremental commitments to increase the principal amount of the revolving line of credit or term loan by $400,000. The U.S. Credit Agreement
matures in September 2022. The outstanding principal amount of the term loan is repayable in quarterly installments of $15,000, with the unpaid balance due
in full on the September 2022 maturity date. Interest on borrowings under the U.S. Credit Agreement can be based on LIBOR or a base rate at the Company’s
option, plus a margin. Margin for LIBOR loans ranges from 1.25% to 2.00% and for base rate loans, ranges from 0.25% to 1.00%, provided that LIBOR shall
not be less than zero. The base rate is a variable rate which is the highest of (a) the Federal Funds Rate, plus a margin of 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest
announced, from time to time, by the agent, Bank of America, N.A, as its “prime rate,” or (c) the Eurodollar Rate, plus 1.0%. The unused revolving credit
facility commitment fee ranges from 0.175% to 0.30% per annum. The margins above the applicable interest rates and the revolving commitment fee for
revolving loans are based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio, as calculated under the
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U.S. Credit Agreement. The Company’s obligations under the U.S. Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of the parent company’s and its United
States domestic subsidiaries’ assets and are guaranteed by certain of our United States domestic subsidiaries.
There were no borrowings outstanding under the revolving credit facility as of either May 31, 2018 or November 30, 2017.
SYNNEX Canada revolving line of credit
In May 2017, SYNNEX Canada entered into an uncommitted revolving line of credit with a bank under which it can borrow up to CAD35,000, or
$27,008. Borrowings under the facility are secured by eligible inventory and bear interest at a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.50% to 2.25%
depending on the base rate used. The base rate could be a Banker's Acceptance Rate, a Canadian Prime Rate, LIBOR or U.S. Base Rate. As of both May 31,
2018, and November 30, 2017, there were no borrowings outstanding under this credit facility.
Other borrowings and other term debt
Other borrowings include lines of credit with financial institutions at certain locations outside the United States, factoring of accounts receivable with
recourse provisions, capital leases, building mortgages and book overdrafts. As of May 31, 2018, commitments for revolving credit aggregated $31,052.
Interest rates and other terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary from country to country, depending on local market conditions. Borrowings under
these facilities are guaranteed by the Company or secured by eligible inventory or accounts receivable.
The maximum commitment amounts for local currency credit facilities have been translated into United States Dollars at May 31, 2018 exchange rates.
Future principal payments
As of May 31, 2018, future principal payments under the above loans are as follows:
Fiscal Years Ending November 30,

2018 (remaining six months)
2019
2020
2021
2022

$

675,120
60,208
60,224
60,142
960,000

$

1,815,694

Interest expense and finance charges
The total interest expense and finance charges for the Company's borrowings were $20,077 and $38,301, respectively, for the three and six months
ended May 31, 2018, and $9,411 and $17,962, respectively, for the three and six months ended May 31, 2017. The variable interest rates ranged between
0.58% and 11.38% during the three months ended May 31, 2018, and between 0.58% and 12.74% during the six months ended May 31, 2018. During both
the three and six months ended May 31, 2017, the variable interest rates ranged between 0.58% and 4.50%.
Covenant compliance
The Company's credit facilities have a number of covenants and restrictions that, among other things, require the Company to maintain specified
financial ratios and satisfy certain financial condition tests. The covenants also limit the Company’s ability to incur additional debt, make or forgive
intercompany loans, pay dividends and make other types of distributions, make certain acquisitions, repurchase the Company’s stock, create liens, cancel
debt owed to the Company, enter into agreements with affiliates, modify the nature of the Company’s business, enter into sale-leaseback transactions, make
certain investments, enter into new real estate leases, transfer and sell assets, cancel or terminate any material contracts and
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merge or consolidate. As of May 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with all material covenants for the above arrangements.
NOTE 11—EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share for the periods indicated.
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Basic earnings per common share:
Net income
Less: net income allocated to participating securities(1)

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

$

93,693
(864)

$

73,148
(674)

$

118,127
(1,084)

$

134,937
(1,254)

Net income attributable to common stockholders
Weighted-average number of common shares - basic

$

92,829
39,505

$

72,474
39,533

$

117,043
39,599

$

133,683
39,513

Basic earnings per common share

$

2.35

$

1.83

$

2.96

$

3.38

Diluted earnings per common share:
Net income
Less: net income allocated to participating securities(1)
Net income attributable to common stockholders
Weighted-average number of common shares - basic
Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options and restricted stock units

$

93,693
(859)

$

73,148
(672)

$

118,127
(1,079)

$

134,937
(1,250)

$

92,834
39,505

$

72,476
39,533

$

117,048
39,599

$

133,687
39,513

237

Weighted-average number of common shares - diluted
Diluted earnings per common share

178

39,742
$

2.34
67

Anti-dilutive shares excluded from diluted earnings per share calculation
_____________________________________
(1) Restricted stock awards granted to employees by the Company are considered participating securities.
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260

39,711
$

1.83
15

195

39,859
$

2.94
49

39,708
$

3.37
13
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NOTE 12—SEGMENT INFORMATION:
Summarized financial information related to the Company’s reportable business segments for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017 is
shown below:

Technology Solutions

Three months ended May 31, 2018
Revenue
External revenue
Operating income
Three months ended May 31, 2017
Revenue
External revenue
Operating income
Six months ended May 31, 2018
Revenue
External revenue
Operating income
Six months ended May 31, 2017
Revenue
External revenue
Operating income
Total assets as of May 31, 2018
Total assets as of November 30, 2017

$

4,486,408
4,486,395
96,254

$

491,246
486,188
27,684

3,458,320
3,458,243
101,705
$

$
$

8,535,227
8,535,158
178,523
6,505,016
6,504,864
182,126
6,701,895
7,124,884

Inter-Segment
Elimination

Concentrix

$

998,983
989,795
57,347
959,843
952,273
44,741
1,604,908
1,677,728

$
$

$

4,972,583
4,972,583
123,938

—

481,679
478,025
23,425
$

(5,071)

Consolidated

(3,731)

3,936,268
3,936,268
125,130

—
$

(9,257)

$

9,524,953
9,524,953
235,870

—
(7,722)

$
$

22
(990,995)
(1,104,086)

7,457,137
7,457,137
226,889
7,315,808
7,698,526

$
$

Inter-segment elimination represents services and other transactions, principally intercompany loans, between the Company's reportable segments that
are eliminated on consolidation.
Geographic information
Shown below is summarized financial information related to the geographic areas in which the Company operates. The revenue attributable to
countries is based on the geography of the entities from where the products are delivered or from where customer service contracts are managed.
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Revenue:
United States
Canada
Others
Total

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

$

3,585,989
443,875
942,719

$

2,875,986
389,561
670,721

$

6,784,475
884,197
1,856,281

$

5,375,359
776,927
1,304,851

$

4,972,583

$

3,936,268

$

9,524,953

$

7,457,137
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As of
May 31, 2018

Property and equipment, net:
United States
India
Others
Total

November 30, 2017

$

145,510
32,857
165,923

$

144,015
37,490
165,084

$

344,290

$

346,589

During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017, no other country represented more than 10% of total revenue. As of May 31, 2018 and
November 30, 2017, no other country represented more than 10% of total net property and equipment.
NOTE 13—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:
The Company has a business relationship with MiTAC Holdings Corporation (“MiTAC Holdings”), a publicly-traded company in Taiwan, which
began in 1992 when MiTAC Holdings became the Company's primary investor through its affiliates. As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, MiTAC
Holdings and its affiliates beneficially owned approximately 22% and 24%, respectively, of the Company’s outstanding common stock. Mr. Matthew Miau,
the Company’s Chairman Emeritus of the Board of Directors and a director, is the Chairman of MiTAC Holdings and a director or officer of MiTAC Holdings’
affiliates.
Beneficial ownership of the Company’s common stock by MiTAC Holdings
As noted above, MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates in the aggregate beneficially owned approximately 22% of the Company’s outstanding common
stock as of May 31, 2018. These shares are owned by the following entities:
As of May 31, 2018

MiTAC Holdings(1)
Synnex Technology International Corp.(2)

4,998
3,860

Total

8,858

_____________________________________
(1) Shares are held via Silver Star Developments Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MiTAC Holdings. Excludes 364 shares directly held by Mr. Matthew Miau and 216 shares
indirectly held by Mr. Mathew Miau through a charitable remainder trust.
(2) Synnex Technology International Corp. (“Synnex Technology International”) is a separate entity from the Company and is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan. Shares
are held via Peer Development Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synnex Technology International. MiTAC Holdings owns a noncontrolling interest of 8.7% in MiTAC
Incorporated, a privately-held Taiwanese company, which in turn holds a noncontrolling interest of 14.1% in Synnex Technology International. Neither MiTAC Holdings
nor Mr. Miau is affiliated with any person(s), entity, or entities that hold a majority interest in MiTAC Incorporated.

MiTAC Holdings generally has significant influence over the Company regarding matters submitted to stockholders for consideration, including any
merger or acquisition of the Company. Among other things, this could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change of control over the
Company.
The following table presents the Company's transactions with MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates for the periods indicated:
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Purchases of inventories
$
Products revenue
Reimbursements received for rent and overhead costs for use of facilities
by MiTAC Holdings and affiliates

49,902
528
35

23

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

$

66,076
332
40

May 31, 2018

$

102,067
861
71

May 31, 2017

$

117,092
735
73
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The Company’s business relationship with MiTAC Holdings has been informal and is not governed by long-term commitments or arrangements with
respect to pricing terms, revenue or capacity commitments. The Company negotiates pricing and other material terms on a case-by-case basis with MiTAC
Holdings. The Company has adopted a policy requiring that material transactions with MiTAC Holdings or its related parties be approved by its Audit
Committee, which is composed solely of independent directors. In addition, Mr. Matthew Miau’s compensation is approved by the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee, which is also composed solely of independent directors.
Synnex Technology International is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan that currently provides distribution and fulfillment services to various
markets in Asia and Australia, and is also a potential competitor of the Company. Neither MiTAC Holdings nor Synnex Technology International is restricted
from competing with the Company.
NOTE 14—PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS PLANS:
The Company has defined benefit pension or retirement plans for eligible employees in certain foreign subsidiaries. Benefits under these plans are
primarily based on years of service and compensation during the years immediately preceding retirement or termination of participation in the plans. In
addition, the Company provides government-mandated postemployment defined benefit plans to eligible employees in certain foreign subsidiaries. During
the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, net pension costs were $1,455 and $2,795, respectively, and the Company's contributions were $853 and
$2,115, respectively. During the three and six months ended May 31, 2017, net pension costs were $1,900 and $3,544, respectively, and the Company's
contributions were $634 and $1,278, respectively. As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, these plans were unfunded by $17,344 and $17,214,
respectively.
The Company has 401(k) plans in the United States under which eligible employees may contribute up to the maximum amount as provided by law.
Employees become eligible to participate in these plans on the first day of the month after their employment date. The Company may make discretionary
contributions under the plans. Employees in most of the Company's foreign subsidiaries are covered by government-mandated defined contribution plans.
During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, the Company contributed $9,381 and $19,365, respectively, to defined contribution plans. During the
three and six months ended May 31, 2017, the Company contributed $8,340 and $16,548, respectively, to defined contribution plans.
The Company has deferred compensation plans for certain directors and officers. Distributions under the plan are subject to Section 409A of the United
States Tax Code. The Company may invest balances in the plan in trading securities reported on recognized exchanges. As of May 31, 2018 and
November 30, 2017, the deferred compensation liability balance was $7,286 and $6,800, respectively.
NOTE 15—EQUITY:
Share repurchase program
In June 2017, the Board of Directors authorized a three-year $300,000 share repurchase program, effective July 1, 2017, pursuant to which the Company
may repurchase its outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. During the three and six
months ended May 31, 2018, the Company repurchased shares aggregating 450 and 451, respectively, for a total cost of $45,831 and $45,985, respectively.
The share purchases were made on the open market and the shares repurchased by the Company are held in treasury for general corporate purposes.
In June 2014, the Board of Directors authorized a three-year $100,000 share repurchase program pursuant to which the Company could repurchase its
outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. Through the expiration of the program in June
2017, the Company had purchased 207 shares at a total cost of $15,654. The share purchases were made on the open market and the shares repurchased by the
Company are held in treasury for general corporate purposes.
Dividends
On June 28, 2018, the Company announced a cash dividend of $0.35 per share payable on July 27, 2018 to stockholders of record as of July 13, 2018.
Future dividends are subject to continued capital availability, compliance with the covenants and conditions in some of the Company's credit facilities and
declaration by the Board of Directors.
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Changes in equity
A reconciliation of the changes in equity for the six months ended May 31, 2018 and 2017 is presented below:
Six Months Ended May 31, 2018
Attributable to
SYNNEX
Corporation

Beginning balance:
$
Issuance of common stock on
exercise of options
Issuance of common stock for
employee stock purchase plan
Tax benefit from employee stock
plans
Taxes paid for the settlement of
equity awards
Share-based compensation
Changes in ownership of
noncontrolling interest
Repurchases of common stock
Dividends declared
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income
(loss):
Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities, net
of taxes
Change in unrealized gain
(losses) in defined benefit plans,
net of taxes
Unrealized gains (losses) on
cash flow hedges, net of taxes
Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of taxes
Total other comprehensive income
(loss)
Total comprehensive income
Ending balance:

2,283,695

Attributable to
Noncontrolling
interest

$

Total Equity

$

1,975,776

Attributable to
Noncontrolling
interest

$

22

Total Equity

—

$ 2,283,695

1,238

—

1,238

467

—

467

1,650

—

1,650

1,393

—

1,393

—

—

—

1,827

—

1,827

$

1,975,798

(1,683)
10,725

—

(1,683)
10,725

(3,611)
8,327

—
—

(3,611)
8,327

—
(45,985)
(27,946)

—
—
—

—
(45,985)
(27,946)

85
—
(19,897)

(22)
—
—

63
—
(19,897)

118,127

—

118,127

134,937

—

134,937

490

—

490

(13)

—

(13)

558

—

558

(55)

—

(55)

—

—

—

3,676

—

3,676

(31,967)

—

(31,967)

15,871

—

15,871

(28,346)

—

(28,346)

16,906

—

16,906

89,781
$

Six Months Ended May 31, 2017
Attributable to
SYNNEX
Corporation

2,311,475

$

—

89,781

—

$ 2,311,475

151,843
$

2,116,210

—
$

—

151,843
$

2,116,210

NOTE 16—TAXES:
Income taxes, comprising current and deferred tax expense resulting from income earned in domestic and foreign jurisdictions, have been included on
the basis of an estimated annual effective tax rate. On December 22, 2017, Public Law 115-97, informally referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“the
TCJA”) was enacted into law. The TCJA provides for significant changes to the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, that impact corporate
taxation requirements. The TCJA significantly revises the ongoing U.S. corporate income tax law by lowering the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from
35% to 21%, implementing a territorial tax system, imposing a one-time tax on foreign unremitted earnings and setting limitations on deductibility of certain
costs (e.g., interest expense), among other things. Due to the complexities involved in accounting for the TCJA, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.
118 (“SAB 118"), which allows a measurement period of up to one year after the enactment date of the TCJA to finalize the recording of the related tax
impacts. SAB 118 requires that
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the Company include in its financial statements the reasonable estimate of the impact of the TCJA on earnings to the extent such reasonable estimate has
been determined. Accordingly, in the first quarter of fiscal year 2018, the Company recorded a provisional adjustment of $67,623, for the transition tax
expense for the mandatory repatriation and a $25,923 tax benefit from the remeasurement of the net deferred taxes due to the new U.S. tax rate. During the
three months ended May 31, 2018, the Company updated its computation of the transition tax to $50,623 and, accordingly, recorded a tax benefit of
$17,000. These estimates may be impacted by new guidance issued by regulators, additional information obtained related to earnings and profits in foreign
jurisdictions and the impact of our financial position as of the measurement date of November 30, 2018. Excluding the impact of the adjustments related to
the TCJA, the Company's effective tax rate during the six months ended May 31, 2018 was 28.4%. The repatriation tax is payable in installments over eight
years.
NOTE 17—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:
The Company leases certain of its facilities under operating lease agreements, which expire in various periods through 2028. Future minimum
contractually required cash payment obligations under non-cancellable lease agreements as of May 31, 2018 were as follows:
Fiscal Years Ending November 30,

2018 (remaining six months)
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

$

47,721
85,388
69,747
47,467
37,084
67,014

Total minimum lease payments

$

354,421

During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, rent expense was $29,642 and $61,315, respectively. During the three and six months
ended May 31, 2017, rent expense was $28,741 and $56,733, respectively. Sublease income was immaterial for each of the periods presented and is
immaterial for the amounts entitled to be received in future periods under non-cancellable sublease arrangements.
The Company was contingently liable as of May 31, 2018 under agreements to repurchase repossessed inventory acquired by flooring companies as a
result of default on floor plan financing arrangements by the Company's customers. These arrangements are described in Note 9—Accounts Receivable
Arrangements and do not have expiration dates. As the Company does not have access to information regarding the amount of inventory purchased from the
Company still on hand with the customer at any point in time, the Company’s repurchase obligations relating to inventory cannot be reasonably estimated.
Losses, if any, would be the difference between the repossession cost and the resale value of the inventory. There have been no repurchases through May 31,
2018 under these agreements and the Company is not aware of any pending customer defaults or repossession obligations. The Company believes that, based
on historical experience, the likelihood of a material loss pursuant to these inventory repurchase obligations is remote.
From time to time, the Company receives notices from third parties, including customers and suppliers, seeking indemnification, payment of money or
other actions in connection with claims made against them. Also, from time to time, the Company has been involved in various bankruptcy preference
actions where the Company was a supplier to the companies now in bankruptcy. In addition, the Company is subject to various other claims, both asserted
and unasserted, that arise in the ordinary course of business. The Company is currently not involved in any material proceedings.
Guarantees
In December 2009, the Company, as the ultimate parent, guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX Investment Holdings Corporation up to $35,035 in
connection with the sale of China Civilink (Cayman), which operated in China as HiChina Web Solutions, to Alibaba.com Limited. The guarantee expires in
fiscal year 2018.
The Company does not believe that the above commitments and contingencies will have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.
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NOTE 18—SUBSEQUENT EVENT:
Merger Agreement
On June 28, 2018, the Company announced a merger agreement (the "Merger Agreement") to acquire Convergys Corporation, an Ohio Corporation
("Convergys") in a 50% cash and 50% stock transaction for $26.50 per share of Convergys common stock, or approximately $2,426,000 at the date of the
announcement. Combined with Convergys’s net debt as of March 31, 2018, the total transaction value is approximately $2,742,000. Each share
of Convergys common stock will be exchanged for $13.25 per share in cash and 0.1193 shares (Exchange Ratio) of SYNNEX common stock, subject to
certain adjustments to be made at closing if the 20 day average trading price of the Company's stock three trading days prior to closing, has increased or
decreased by more than 10% from a baseline price. Following the proposed transaction, Convergys shareholders will own between approximately 20% and
22% of SYNNEX shares on a fully-diluted basis based on the number of SYNNEX shares outstanding. Either party can terminate the Merger Agreement if the
other party’s stockholder approval is not obtained and collect a fee equal to $12,350.
The acquisition is related to the Company's Concentrix segment and is expected to add scale, expand the Company's delivery footprint and strengthen
the Company’s leadership position as a top global provider of customer engagement services. For its fiscal year ended December 31, 2017, Convergys
generated $2,792,100 in revenue and $121,400 of net income.
Completion of the acquisition is subject to approval by the Company's stockholders and Convergys' shareholders, approval by the New York Stock
Exchange of the listing of the SYNNEX stock to be issued as consideration, and other customary closing conditions, including expiration of the federal HartScott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976 waiting period and other similar antitrust laws in Canada, the European Union and the Philippines. The
Company expects the transaction to close by the end of the calendar year 2018.
Debt Commitment Letter
In connection with the Merger Agreement, the Company entered into a debt commitment letter (the “Commitment Letter”), dated as of June 28, 2018,
with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A. (collectively, the “Initial Lenders”) and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated,
pursuant to which the Initial Lenders have committed to provide a 364-day senior secured term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to
$3,570,000, subject to the satisfaction of certain customary closing conditions (the “Bridge Facility”). The Bridge Facility is available (i) to pay for a portion
of the merger consideration, (ii) to directly or indirectly pay, repay, repurchase, or settle, as applicable, certain existing indebtedness of Convergys and its
subsidiaries, (iii) to refinance in full all outstanding obligations under the U.S. Credit Agreement, should the existing lenders not permit the incurrence of
debt in connection with the acquisition, and (iv) to pay the costs and expenses related to the merger with Convergys, the Bridge Facility and the transactions
being entered into or otherwise contemplated in connection therewith.
If the Company is required to utilize the Bridge Facility, then depending on the use of proceeds described above for which the Bridge Facility may be
utilized, amounts drawn thereunder will bear interest at an annual rate equal to LIBOR plus a margin which may initially range from 1.25% to 2.00%,
depending on SYNNEX’ consolidated leverage ratio, which margin will be increased by 0.25% for each 90 days that elapse after the closing of the Bridge
Facility, up to a maximum range of 2.00% to 2.75%. In addition, up to the lesser of (i) the unfunded commitments under the Bridge Facility and (ii) $350,000
is available to be drawn down during the 90 day period following the closing of the Bridge Facility to repurchase or settle convertible debentures of
Convergys that are tendered for repurchase or converted in connection with the merger, and SYNNEX will pay commitment fees on the undrawn amount of
this commitment ranging from 0.15% to 0.25% based upon SYNNEX’ consolidated leverage ratio.
Additionally, prior to the completion of the proposed Convergys acquisition, the Company's ability to issue dividends outside its normal practice or
repurchase shares of common stock may be limited.
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ITEM 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated
Financial Statements and related Notes included elsewhere in this Report.
When used in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, or this "Report", the words “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “allows,” “can,” “may,” “designed,”
“will,” and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements. These are statements that relate to future periods and include
statements about market trends, our business model and our services, our market strategy, including expansion of our product lines, our infrastructure, our
investment in information technology, or IT, systems, our employee hiring, impact of MiTAC Holdings Corporation, or MiTAC Holdings, ownership interest
in us, our revenue and operating results, our gross margins, our inventory, competition with Synnex Technology International Corp., our future needs for
additional financing, the likely sources for such funding and the impact of such funding, concentration of customers, our international operations, foreign
currency exchange rates, expansion of our operations and related effects, including our Concentrix business, our strategic acquisitions and divestitures of
businesses and assets, including our proposed acquisition of Convergys and the timing and impact thereof, the integration of our Westcon-Comstor
Americas acquisition and the calculation of contingent consideration and purchase price allocation, our goodwill and seasonality, adequacy of our cash
resources to meet our capital needs, cash held by our foreign subsidiaries and repatriation, changes in fair value of derivative instruments, adequacy of our
disclosure controls and procedures, pricing pressures, competition, impact of economic and industry trends, impact of our accounting policies and recently
issued accounting pronouncements, impact of inventory repurchase obligations and commitments and contingencies, our tax rates and the impact of the Tax
Cuts and Jobs Act, our share repurchase and dividend program, and statements regarding our securitization programs, revolving credit lines and the
Commitment Letter, and our investments in working capital, personnel and our succession planning, facilities and operations. Forward-looking statements
are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those projected. These risks and uncertainties include, but are
not limited to, those risks discussed herein, as well as the seasonality of the buying patterns of our customers, concentration of sales to large customers,
dependence upon and trends in capital spending budgets in the IT, and consumer electronics, or CE, industries, fluctuations in general economic conditions
and other risk factors contained herein under Item 1A,if any, and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2017. These forwardlooking statements speak only as of the date hereof. We expressly disclaim any obligation or undertaking to release publicly any updates or revisions to any
forward-looking statements contained herein to reflect any change in our expectations with regard thereto or any change in events, conditions or
circumstances on which any such statement is based.
Overview
We are a Fortune 500 corporation and a leading business process services company, providing a comprehensive range of distribution, logistics and
integration services for the technology industry and providing outsourced services focused on customer engagement to a broad range of enterprises. We
provide our products and services through two reportable business segments: Technology Solutions and Concentrix. Our Technology Solutions segment
distributes peripherals, IT systems including data center server and storage solutions, system components, software, networking, communications and security
equipment, consumer electronics, or CE, and complementary products. Within our Technology Solutions segment, we also provide systems design and
integration solutions. Our Concentrix segment offers a portfolio of strategic solutions and end-to-end business services focused on customer engagement,
process optimization, technology innovation, front and back-office automation and business transformation to clients in ten identified industry verticals.
In our Technology Solutions segment, we distribute more than 30,000 technology products (as measured by active SKUs) from more than 300 IT, CE
and original equipment manufacturers, or OEM suppliers, to more than 25,000 resellers, system integrators, and retailers throughout the United States,
Canada, Japan and Central and South America. We purchase peripherals, IT systems, system components, software, networking, communications and security
equipment, CE and complementary products from our suppliers and sell them to our reseller and retail customers. We perform a similar function for our
distribution of licensed software products. Our reseller customers include value-added resellers, or VARs, corporate resellers, government resellers, system
integrators, direct marketers, and national and regional retailers. We combine our core strengths in distribution with demand generation, supply chain
management and design and integration solutions to help our customers achieve greater efficiencies in time to market, cost minimization, real-time linkages
in the supply chain and after-market product support. We also provide comprehensive IT solutions in key vertical markets such as government and healthcare
and we provide specialized service offerings that increase efficiencies in the areas of print management, renewals, networking, logistics services and supply
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chain management. Additionally, we provide our customers with systems design and integration solutions for data center servers and networking solutions
built specific to our customers' workloads and data center environments.
Our Technology Solutions business is characterized by low gross profit as a percentage of revenue, or gross margin, and low income from operations as
a percentage of revenue, or operating margin. The market for IT and CE products is generally characterized by declining unit prices and short product life
cycles. We set our sales price based on the market supply and demand characteristics for each particular product or bundle of products we distribute and
services we provide.
In our Concentrix segment, we provide a comprehensive range of strategic services and solutions to enhance our clients' customer life cycles to acquire,
support and renew customer relationships, to automate and optimize processes, to maximize the value of every customer interaction and to improve business
outcomes. Our portfolio of services includes end-to-end process outsourcing to customers in various industry vertical markets delivered through omnichannels that include both voice and non-voice mediums in more than 40 languages. Our portfolio of solutions and services support our clients and their
customers globally.
From a geographic perspective, approximately 72% and 71% of our total revenue was from the United States during the three and six months ended
May 31, 2018 and approximately 73% and 72%, respectively, during the three and six months ended May 31, 2017. The revenue attributable to countries is
based on geographical locations from where products are delivered or from where customer service contracts are managed. Approximately 42% of our net
property and equipment was located in the United States as of both May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017. As of May 31, 2018, we had approximately
111,000 full-time and temporary employees worldwide.
On March 1, 2018, Dennis Polk became our President and Chief Executive Officer following the retirement of Kevin Murai.
Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
During the six months ended May 31, 2018, we adopted certain new accounting guidance. For more information on all of our critical accounting
policies, please see the discussion in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for fiscal year ended November 30, 2017 and Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
Acquisitions
We continually seek to augment organic growth in both our business segments with strategic acquisitions of businesses and assets that complement and
expand our existing capabilities. We also divest businesses that we deem no longer strategic to our ongoing operations. In our Technology Solutions
business we seek to acquire new OEM relationships, enhance our supply chain and integration capabilities, the services we provide to our customers and
OEM suppliers, and expand our geographic footprint. In our Concentrix segment, we seek to further enhance our capabilities and domain expertise in our key
verticals, and further expand into higher value service offerings. We are also strategically focused on further increasing our scale to support our customers.
Pending acquisition
On June 28, 2018, we announced a merger agreement (the "Merger Agreement") to acquire Convergys Corporation, an Ohio Corporation ("Convergys")
in a 50% cash and 50% stock transaction for $26.50 per share of Convergys' common stock, or approximately $2.43 billion at the date of the announcement.
Combined with Convergys’ net debt as of March 31, 2018, the total transaction value is approximately $2.74 billion. Each share of Convergys' common
stock will be exchanged for $13.25 per share in cash and 0.1193 shares of SYNNEX common stock, subject to certain adjustments to be made at closing if the
20 day average trading price of our stock, three trading days prior to closing, has increased or decreased by more than 10% from a baseline price. Posttransaction, Convergys shareholders will own between approximately 20% and 22% of SYNNEX shares on a fully-diluted basis based on the number of
SYNNEX shares outstanding. Either party can terminate the Merger Agreement if the other party’s stockholder approval is not obtained and collect a fee
equal to $12.35 million. The acquisition is related to the Company's Concentrix segment and is expected to add scale, expand the Company's delivery
footprint and strengthen the Company’s leadership position as a top global provider of customer engagement services.
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In connection with the Merger agreement, the Company also obtained a commitment letter for a $3.57 billion senior secured bridge loan facility,
subject to customary conditions, in order to finance a portion of the proposed acquisition, if necessary.
Completion of the acquisition is subject to approval by our stockholders and Convergys' shareholders, approval by the New York Stock Exchange of
the listing of our stock to be issued as consideration, and other customary closing conditions, including, expiration of the federal Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976 waiting period and other similar antitrust laws in Canada, the European Union and the Philippines. We expect the transaction to
close by the end of calendar year 2018.
Fiscal 2017 acquisitions
On September 1, 2017, we acquired the North America and Latin America distribution businesses, or the Westcon-Comstor Americas business, of
Datatec Limited ("Datatec"), for a purchase price of approximately $633.6 million. The purchase price was comprised of $602.7 million paid in cash, fair
value of contingent consideration payable of $33.1 million and a refund of $2.3 million receivable from Datatec towards the settlement of certain preacquisition intra Datatec group transactions. During the six months ended May 31, 2018, the Company received $2.3 million from Datatec. Contingent
consideration of up to $200.0 million is payable in cash if certain gross profit targets were achieved for the twelve-month period ended February 28,
2018. We are in the process of finalizing the amount of contingent consideration payable, if any.
On July 31, 2017, the Company acquired 100% of Tigerspike Pty Ltd (“Tigerspike”), a digital products company, specializing in strategy, experience
design, development and systems integration, for a preliminary purchase price of $68.5 million, including a holdback amount which was payable to the
sellers upon the finalization of post-closing adjustments. During the six months ended May 31, 2018, the Company recorded certain immaterial measurement
period adjustments to the fair value of assumed net tangible liabilities, decreasing goodwill by $0.6 million and the purchase price by $1.4 million, resulting
in a final purchase price of $67.0 million, and paid the remaining holdback amount of $8.2 million to the sellers.
Results of Operations
The following table sets forth, for the indicated periods, data as percentages of revenue:
Statements of Operations Data:

Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Products revenue
Services revenue
Total revenue
Cost of products revenue
Cost of services revenue

90.22 %
9.78

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

87.86 %
12.14

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

89.61 %
10.39

87.23 %
12.77

100.00
(85.25)
(6.12)

100.00
(82.96)
(7.58)

100.00
(84.65)
(6.50)

100.00
(82.42)
(8.00)

Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses

8.63
(6.14)

9.46
(6.28)

8.85
(6.37)

9.58
(6.54)

Operating income
Interest expense and finance charges, net
Other expense, net

2.49
(0.33)
(0.03)

3.18
(0.22)
(0.01)

2.48
(0.36)
(0.03)

3.04
(0.22)
(0.01)

Income before income taxes
Provision for income taxes

2.13
(0.25)

2.95
(1.09)

2.09
(0.85)

2.81
(1.00)

1.88 %

Net income

1.86 %

1.24 %

Certain non-GAAP financial information
In addition to disclosing financial results that are determined in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
(“GAAP”), we also disclose certain non-GAAP financial information, including:
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•

Revenue in constant currency, which is revenue adjusted for the translation effect of foreign currencies so that certain financial results can be
viewed without the impact of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, thereby facilitating period-to-period comparisons of our business
performance. Revenue in constant currency is calculated by translating the revenue for the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, in billing
currency using their comparable prior period currency conversion rate. Generally, when the dollar either strengthens or weakens against other
currencies, the growth at constant currency rates or adjusting for currency will be higher or lower than growth reported at actual exchange rates.

•

Non-GAAP operating income, which is operating income as adjusted to exclude acquisition-related and integration expenses, restructuring costs
and amortization of intangible assets.

•

Non-GAAP operating margin, which is non-GAAP operating income, as defined above, divided by revenue.

•

Adjusted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or adjusted EBITDA, which is non-GAAP operating income, as defined
above, plus depreciation.

•

Non-GAAP diluted earnings per common share (“EPS”), which is diluted EPS excluding the per share, tax effected impact of (i) acquisition-related
and integration expenses, (ii) restructuring costs, and (iii) amortization of intangible assets, and the per share amount of the net impact of the
adjustments related to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017.

We believe that providing this additional information is useful to the reader to better assess and understand our base operating performance, especially
when comparing results with previous periods and for planning and forecasting in future periods, primarily because management typically monitors the
business adjusted for these items in addition to GAAP results. Management also uses these non-GAAP measures to establish operational goals and, in some
cases, for measuring performance for compensation purposes. As these non-GAAP financial measures are not calculated in accordance with GAAP, they may
not necessarily be comparable to similarly titled measures employed by other companies. These non-GAAP financial measures should not be considered in
isolation or as a substitute for the comparable GAAP measures, and should be used only as a complement to, and in conjunction with data presented in
accordance with GAAP.
Non-GAAP Financial Information:
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated
Revenue
Foreign currency translation

$

4,972,583
(35,798)

$

3,936,268

$

9,524,953
(73,895)

$

7,457,137

Revenue in constant currency

$

4,936,785

$

3,936,268

$

9,451,058

$

7,457,137

Operating income
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Amortization of intangibles

$

123,938
2,046
26,276

$

125,130
—
16,069

$

235,870
3,851
52,986

$

226,889
611
32,556

Non-GAAP operating income
Depreciation

$

152,260
22,596

$

141,199
19,413

$

292,707
44,520

$

260,056
38,873

Adjusted EBITDA

$

174,856

$

160,612

$

337,227

$

298,929

Operating margin
Non-GAAP operating margin

2.49%
3.06%

31

3.18%
3.59%

2.48%
3.07%
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Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Technology Solutions
Revenue
Foreign currency translation

$

4,486,408
(26,828)

$

3,458,320

$

8,535,227
(51,258)

$

6,505,016

Revenue in constant currency

$

4,459,580

$

3,458,320

$

8,483,969

$

6,505,016

Operating income
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Amortization of intangibles

$

96,254
2,046
12,462

$

101,705
—
651

$

178,523
3,851
25,278

$

182,126
—
1,305

Non-GAAP operating income
Depreciation

$

110,762
5,010

$

102,356
3,402

$

207,652
9,844

$

183,431
6,878

Adjusted EBITDA

$

115,772

$

105,758

$

217,496

$

190,309

Concentrix
Revenue
Foreign currency translation

$

491,246
(8,970)

$

481,679

$

998,983
(22,637)

$

959,843

Revenue in constant currency

$

482,276

$

481,679

$

976,346

$

959,843

Operating income
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Amortization of intangibles

$

27,684
—
13,814

$

23,425
—
15,418

$

57,347
—
27,708

$

44,741
611
31,251

Non-GAAP operating income
Depreciation

$

41,498
17,586

$

38,843
16,011

$

85,055
34,676

$

76,603
32,018

Adjusted EBITDA

$

59,084

$

54,854

$

119,731

$

108,621

Diluted EPS
Acquisition-related and integration expenses
Amortization of intangibles
Income taxes related to the above(1)
U.S. tax reform adjustment

$

2.34
(0.01)
0.66
(0.18)
(0.42)

$

1.83
—
0.40
(0.15)
—

$

2.94
0.03
1.32
(0.38)
0.61

$

3.37
0.02
0.81
(0.29)
—

Non-GAAP diluted EPS(2)

$

2.38

$

2.08

$

4.52

$

3.90

_____________________________________

(1) The tax effect of the non-GAAP adjustments was calculated using the effective year-to-date tax rate during the respective periods. The effective tax rate for fiscal year 2018
excludes the impact of the transition tax on accumulated overseas profits and the remeasurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities to the new U.S. tax rate related to the
enactment of the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017.
(2) The sum of the components of non-GAAP diluted EPS may not agree to totals, as presented, due to rounding.
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Three and Six Months Ended May 31, 2018 and 2017
Revenue
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

May 31, 2018

(in thousands)

Revenue
Technology Solutions revenue
Concentrix revenue
Inter-segment elimination

$

4,972,583
4,486,408
491,246
(5,071)

$

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

3,936,268
3,458,320
481,679
(3,731)

26.3%
29.7%
2.0%

$

9,524,953
8,535,227
998,983
(9,257)

$

7,457,137
6,505,016
959,843
(7,722)

27.7%
31.2%
4.1%

Our revenues include sales of products and services. In our Technology Solutions segment, we distribute a comprehensive range of products for the
technology industry. The prices of our products are highly dependent on the volumes purchased within a product category. The products we sell from one
period to the next are often not comparable because of rapid changes in product models and features. We also design and integrate data center servers. The
revenue generated in our Concentrix segment relates to business services focused on process optimization, customer engagement strategy and back office
automation. Inter-segment elimination represents services generated between our reportable segments that are eliminated on consolidation. Substantially all
of the inter-segment revenue represents services provided by the Concentrix segment to the Technology Solutions segment.
Revenue in our Technology Solutions segment increased during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 compared to the prior year periods,
primarily due to the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition in September 2017 and broad-based strength in systems, peripherals, cloud-based solutions, and
networking product sales in the United States. Revenue in our Technology Solutions segment during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 also
benefited from foreign currency translation, primarily from the strengthening of the Canadian Dollar and the Japanese Yen.
Revenue in our Concentrix segment increased during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the prior year period primarily due to
the Tigerspike acquisition in July 2017 and favorable foreign currency translation, primarily from a strengthening of the British Pound, the Euro, the Chinese
Yuan and the Japanese Yen. This increase was partially offset by revenue erosion from expired contracts and a short-term project for an existing customer.
Gross Profit
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

Six Months Ended
Percent Change

May 31, 2018

(in thousands)

Gross profit
$
Gross margin
Technology Solutions gross profit
Technology Solutions gross margin
Concentrix gross profit
Concentrix gross margin
Inter-segment elimination

429,094
$
8.63%
247,267
5.51%
183,578
37.37%
(1,751)

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

372,245
9.46%
192,688
5.57%
181,459
37.67%
(1,902)

15.3%
28.3%
1.2%

$

843,045
$
8.85%
471,990
5.53%
374,483
37.49%
(3,428)

714,028
9.58%
358,831
5.52%
359,145
37.42%
(3,948)

18.1%
31.5%
4.3%

Our Technology Solutions gross margin is affected by a variety of factors, including competition, selling prices, mix of products and services, product
costs along with rebate and discount programs from our suppliers, reserves or settlement adjustments, freight costs, inventory losses, acquisition of business
units and fluctuations in revenue. Concentrix margins, which are higher than those in our Technology Solutions segment, can be impacted by resource
location, customer mix and pricing, additional lead time for programs to be fully scalable, and transition and initial set-up costs.
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Gross profit in our Technology Solutions segment increased during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the prior year periods,
primarily due to the impact of the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition. Gross margin decreased marginally during the three month period primarily due to
lower gross margins from our system design and integration solutions business, offset partially by the favorable impact of the Westcon-Comstor Americas
gross margins. During the six months ended May 31, 2018, gross margin was consistent with the prior year period primarily due to the favorable impact of the
Westcon-Comstor Americas gross margins, substantially offset by the lower gross margins from our system design and integration solutions business.
Gross profit in our Concentrix segment increased during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the prior year periods, primarily
due to the impact of the Tigerspike acquisition in July 2017, customer mix and net favorable foreign currency translation, partially offset by higher labor
costs in North America. The net favorable foreign currency translation impact resulted from a strengthening of the British Pound and the Euro and a
weakening of the Philippines Peso, partially offset by a strengthening of the Canadian dollar and Indian Rupee. We have large delivery service centers in
India and the Philippines, and a strengthening in these currencies compared to the US Dollar, adversely impacts our costs and gross margin while a
weakening favorably impacts our costs and gross margin. Excluding the impact of currency translation, gross margin decreased during the three and six
months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the prior year periods, due to customer mix.
Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

Six Months Ended
Percent Change

May 31, 2018

(in thousands)

Selling, general and administrative
expenses
$
Percentage of revenue
Technology Solutions selling,
general and administrative expenses
Percentage of revenue
Concentrix selling, general and
administrative expenses
Percentage of revenue
Inter-segment elimination

305,156
$
6.14%

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

247,115
6.28%

23.5 %

151,013
3.37%

90,983
2.63%

155,894
31.73%
(1,751)

158,034
32.81%
(1,902)

$

607,175
$
6.37%

487,139
6.54%

24.6%

66.0 %

293,467
3.44%

176,705
2.72%

66.1%

(1.4)%

317,136
31.75%
(3,428)

314,404
32.76%
(3,970)

0.9%

Our selling, general and administrative expenses consist primarily of personnel costs such as salaries, commissions, bonuses, share-based compensation
and temporary personnel costs. Selling, general and administrative expenses also include cost of warehouses, delivery centers and other non-integration
facilities, utility expenses, legal and professional fees, depreciation on certain of our capital equipment, bad debt expense, amortization of our nontechnology related intangible assets, and marketing expenses, offset in part by reimbursements from our OEM suppliers.
The increase in our selling, general and administrative expenses during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018 as compared to the prior year
periods was primarily due to the acquisition of the Westcon-Comstor Americas business in September 2017 in our Technology Solutions segment. The
decrease in our selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue as compared to the prior year periods is primarily due to the increase
in the proportion of Technology Solutions selling, general and administrative expenses related to our total selling, general and administrative expenses due
to the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition. As compared to our Concentrix segment, Technology Solutions is characterized by high sales volume and
lower gross margin. Consequently, an increase in the relative proportion of Technology Solutions selling, general and administrative expenses, results in a
decrease in such expenses as a percentage of revenue.
During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, selling, general and administrative expenses in our Technology Solutions segment increased, in
both dollars and as a percentage of revenue, compared to the prior year periods, primarily due to the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition in September
2017. In connection with the acquisition, we incurred approximately $2.0 million and $3.9 million in acquisition-related and integration expenses during the
three and six months
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ended May 31, 2018 and the amortization of intangible assets was approximately $11.8 million and $24.0 million higher during the three and six months
ended May 31, 2018 than the comparative prior year periods.
Selling, general and administrative expenses in the Concentrix segment decreased during the three months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the prior
year period, due to operational efficiencies and $1.6 million lower amortization of intangible assets. This decrease was substantially offset by the impact of
the Tigerspike acquisition in July 2017 and geographic expansion. During the six months ended May 31, 2018, selling, general and administrative expenses
increased compared to the prior year period, primarily due to the Tigerspike acquisition, geographic expansion and the unfavorable impact of foreign
currency translation, primarily from a strengthening of the British Pound, the Chinese Yuan, the Indian Rupee, and the Canadian Dollar. These increases were
offset partially by a decrease in the amortization of intangible assets by $3.6 million, favorable impact of a weakening of the Philippines Peso and $0.6
million spent on acquisition-related and integration expenses in the prior year period.
Operating income
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

May 31, 2018

Percent Change

(in thousands)

Operating income
Operating margin
Technology Solutions operating income
Technology Solutions operating margin
Concentrix operating income
Concentrix operating margin
Inter-segment eliminations

$

123,938
$
2.49%
96,254
2.15%
27,684
5.64%
—

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

125,130
3.18%
101,705
2.94%
23,425
4.86%
—

(1.0)% $
(5.4)%
18.2 %

235,870
$
2.48%
178,523
2.09%
57,347
5.74%
—

226,889
3.04%
182,126
2.80%
44,741
4.66%
22

4.0 %
(2.0)%
28.2 %

Operating income and margin in our Technology Solutions segment decreased during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the
prior year periods, primarily due to a decrease in gross profit and increased investments in our systems design and integration solutions business. This
decrease was partially offset by the impact of the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition in September 2017.
Operating income and margin in our Concentrix segment increased during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the same periods
in the prior year, primarily due to the increase in revenue and the resultant profit and lower selling, and general and administrative expenses as described
earlier and the net favorable impact of currency translation, primarily from a weakening of the Philippines Peso and strengthening of the British Pound and
the Euro. The favorable foreign currency impact was partially offset by a strengthening of the Canadian dollar and the Chinese Yuan. The six month ended
May 31, 2018 was also adversely impacted by a relatively stronger Indian Rupee as compared to the prior year period.
Interest Expense and Finance Charges, Net
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

Interest expense and finance charges, net
Percentage of revenue

$

16,375
$
0.33%

May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

8,962
0.22%

82.7% $

33,826
$
0.36%

17,144
0.22%

97.3%

Amounts recorded in interest expense and finance charges, net, consist primarily of interest expense paid on our lines of credit and term loans, fees
associated with third party accounts receivable flooring arrangements and the sale or pledge of accounts receivable through our securitization facility, offset
by income earned on our cash investments.
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During the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, our interest expense and finance charges, net, increased compared to the prior year periods,
primarily due to higher interest expense as a result of additional borrowings to fund the Westcon-Comstor Americas and Tigerspike acquisitions and support
growth in our Technology Solutions segment. Our borrowings are primarily at variable rates and our interest expense has also increased with the increase in
benchmark interest rates. The current period interest expense was benefitted by $2.6 million due to the de-designation of an interest rate swap associated with
the planned termination of Westcon-Comstor Americas debt.
Other Expense, Net
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

May 31, 2018

(in thousands)

Other expense, net
Percentage of revenue

$

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

1,446
$
0.03%

206
0.01%

601.9%

$

2,624
$
0.03%

529
0.01%

396.0%

Amounts recorded as other expense, net include foreign currency transaction gains and losses, investment gains and losses and other non-operating
gains and losses.
The increases in other expense, net, during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, compared to the prior year periods were primarily due to
higher foreign currency exchange losses. These losses were partially offset by a gain of $2.8 million recognized upon reclassification of a cost-method
investment as trading during the three months ended May 31, 2018.
Provision for Income Taxes
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

Six Months Ended

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

May 31, 2018

(in thousands)

Provision for income taxes
$
Percentage of income before income
taxes

12,424
11.71%

$

May 31, 2017

Percent Change

(in thousands)

42,814

(71.0)%

36.92%

$

81,293
40.76%

$

74,279

9.4%

35.50%

Income taxes consist of our current and deferred tax expense resulting from our income earned in domestic and foreign jurisdictions. Income taxes for
the interim periods presented have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements on the basis of an estimated annual effective tax
rate.
The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act of 2017 (“the TCJA”) provides for significant changes to the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, including
lowering the U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%, implementing a territorial tax system, imposing a one-time tax on foreign unremitted
earnings and setting limitations on deductibility of certain costs (e.g., interest expense), among other things. Due to the complexities involved in accounting
for the TCJA, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 118 (“SAB 118"), which allows a measurement period of up to one year after the enactment date
of the TCJA to finalize the recording of the related tax impacts. SAB 118 requires that a company include in its financial statements the reasonable estimate
of the impact of the TCJA on earnings to the extent such reasonable estimate has been determined. Accordingly, we recorded a provisional net adjustment of
$41.7 million related to the TCJA in the first quarter of fiscal year 2018. This adjustment included a $67.6 million transition tax expense for mandatory
repatriation, partially offset by a $25.9 million tax benefit from the remeasurement of our net deferred tax balance to the new U.S. tax rate enacted under the
TCJA. During the three months ended May 31, 2018, we updated our computation of the transition tax to $50.6 million and, accordingly, recorded a tax
benefit of $17.0 million. The resultant net provisional adjustment related to the TCJA during the six months ended May 31, 2018 was $24.7 million. As
discussed in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we have not yet completed our analysis of the full impact of the TCJA.
The decrease in the effective tax rate during the three months ended May 31, 2018, and increase during the six months ended May 31, 2018, compared
to the respective prior year periods, is primarily due to the discrete impact of a tax benefit of $17.0 million and net tax charge of $24.7 million, respectively,
related to the TCJA as described above. Excluding the impact of the adjustments related to the TCJA, our effective tax rates for the three and six months
ended May 31, 2018 were 27.73% and
36

Table of Contents

28.38%, respectively. The current period tax rates, compared to the prior year period, are lower primarily due to the impact of the lower tax rate under the
TCJA.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash Conversion Cycle
Three Months Ended
May 31, 2018

May 31, 2017

(in thousands)

Days sales outstanding
Revenue (products and services)
Accounts receivable, including receivable from related parties
Days sales outstanding
Days inventory outstanding
Cost of revenue (products and services)
Inventories
Days inventory outstanding
Days payable outstanding
Cost of revenue (products and services)
Accounts payable, including payable to related parties
Days payable outstanding
Cash conversion cycle

(a) $
(b)
(c) = (b)/((a)/the number of
days during the period)

4,972,583
2,712,711

(d) $
(e)
(f) = (e)/((d)/the number of
days during the period)

4,543,489
2,129,779

(g) $
(h)
(i) = (h)/((g)/the number of
days during the period)

4,543,489
2,287,954

$

50

3,936,268
1,787,437
42

$

43

3,564,023
2,112,590
55

$

3,564,023
1,706,408

46

44

47

53

Cash Flows
Our Technology Solutions business is working capital intensive. Our working capital needs are primarily to finance accounts receivable and inventory.
We rely heavily on term loans, accounts receivable arrangements, our securitization programs and our revolver programs for our working capital needs. We
have financed our growth and cash needs to date primarily through cash generated from operations and financing activities. As a general rule, when sales
volumes are increasing, our net investment in working capital dollars typically increases, which generally results in decreased cash flow generated from
operating activities. Conversely, when sales volume decreases, our net investment in working capital dollars typically decreases, which generally results in
increases in cash flows generated from operating activities. Our cash conversion cycle was 47 days and 53 days as of May 31, 2018 and May 31, 2017,
respectively. We calculate cash conversion cycle as days of the last fiscal quarter’s sales outstanding in accounts receivable plus days of supply on hand in
inventory, less days of the last fiscal quarter’s purchases outstanding in accounts payable. The decrease, compared to the prior year period, was primarily a
result of the Westcon-Comstor Americas acquisition, as well as working capital improvements throughout fiscal 2017 in our systems design and integration
solutions business.
To increase our market share and better serve our customers, we may further expand our operations through investments or acquisitions. We expect that
such expansion would require an initial investment in working capital, personnel, facilities and operations. These investments or acquisitions would likely
be funded primarily by our existing cash and cash equivalents, additional borrowings, or the issuance of securities.
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Net cash provided by operating activities was $62.7 million during the six months ended May 31, 2018, primarily due to net income of $118.1 million,
a decrease in accounts receivable of $111.6 million, adjustments for non-cash items of $82.3 million, a net change in other assets and liabilities of $62.3
million and a decrease in inventories of $30.5 million. These cash inflows were partially offset by a decrease in accounts payable of $342.1 million. The
decreases in accounts receivable, inventories and accounts payable were primarily due to lower revenue in Technology Solutions segment during the three
months ended May 31, 2018 following a seasonally high fourth quarter of fiscal year 2017. The adjustments for non-cash items consist primarily of
amortization and depreciation, stock-based compensation expense and the deferred tax benefit related to the remeasurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities to the new U.S. tax rate due to the enactment of the TCJA.
Net cash used in operating activities was $145.6 million during the six months ended May 31, 2017, primarily due to an increase in inventories of
$368.2 million. This cash outflow was partially offset by net income of $134.9 million and adjustments for non-cash items of $77.5 million. The increase in
inventories was primarily due to strong demand for our systems design and integration solutions. The adjustments for non-cash items consist primarily of
amortization, depreciation and stock-based compensation expense.
Net cash used in investing activities during the six months ended May 31, 2018 was $50.5 million, primarily due to capital expenditures of $50.0
million, related substantially to our Concentrix segment. In addition, we made a final payment of $8.2 million for the acquisition of Tigerspike and received
a refund of $2.3 million from Datatec towards the settlement of certain pre-acquisition intra Datatec group transactions related to our acquisition of WestconComstor Americas.
Net cash used in investing activities during the six months ended May 31, 2017 was $40.1 million, primarily due to capital expenditures of $45.3
million, related substantially to growth in our Concentrix segment. This cash outflow was partially offset by $6.5 million of refund of excess consideration
received related to the Minacs acquisition as a result of post-closing adjustments.
Net cash used in financing activities during the six months ended May 31, 2018 was $206.2 million, consisting primarily of $128.3 million of net
repayments under our borrowing arrangements by utilizing the cash generated from operations during the fourth fiscal quarter of 2017 and a return of cash to
stockholders in the form of $46.0 million of repurchases of common stock and $27.9 million of dividend payments.
Net cash provided by financing activities during the six months ended May 31, 2017 was $101.6 million, consisting primarily of $122.8 million of net
proceeds from our borrowing arrangements to fund our working capital requirements. This cash inflow was partially offset by $19.9 million of dividend
payments.
Capital Resources
Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $354.2 million and $550.7 million as of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, respectively. Of our total cash
and cash equivalents, the cash held by our foreign subsidiaries was $264.3 million and $267.2 million as of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017,
respectively. Repatriation of the cash held by our foreign subsidiaries would be subject to United States federal income taxes. Also, repatriation of some
foreign balances is restricted by local laws. However, we have historically fully utilized and reinvested all foreign cash to fund our foreign operations and
expansion. If in the future our intentions change and we repatriate the cash back to the United States, we will report in our consolidated financial statements
the impact of the applicable taxes depending upon the planned timing and manner of such repatriation. Presently, we believe we have sufficient resources,
cash flow and liquidity within the United States to fund current and expected future working capital, investment and other general corporate funding
requirements.
We believe that our available cash and cash equivalents balances, the cash flows expected to be generated from operations and our existing sources of
liquidity will be sufficient to satisfy our current and planned working capital and investment needs for the next twelve months in all geographies, including
for the proposed acquisition of Convergys. We also believe that our longer-term working capital, planned capital expenditures, anticipated stock repurchases,
dividend payments and other general corporate funding requirements will be satisfied through cash flows from operations and, to the extent necessary, from
our borrowing facilities and future financial market activities.
Historically, we have renewed our accounts receivable securitization program and our U.S. credit facility agreement described below on, or prior to,
their respective expiration dates. We have no reason to believe that these and other arrangements will not be renewed as we continue to be in good credit
standing with the participating financial institutions. We have had similar borrowing arrangements with various financial institutions throughout our years as
a public company.
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On-Balance Sheet Arrangements
In the United States, we have an accounts receivable securitization program, or the U.S. AR Arrangement, to provide additional capital for our
operations. The U.S. AR Arrangement expires in May 2020. One of our subsidiaries, which is the borrower under the U.S. AR Arrangement, can borrow up to a
maximum of $850 million based upon eligible trade accounts receivable denominated in United States dollars. The U.S. AR Arrangement includes an
accordion feature to allow requests for an increase in the lenders' commitment by an additional $150 million. The effective borrowing cost under the U.S. AR
Arrangement is a blended rate based upon the composition of the lenders that includes prevailing dealer commercial paper rates and a rate based upon
LIBOR, provided that LIBOR shall not be less than zero. In addition, a program fee of 0.75% per annum based on the used portion of the commitment, and a
facility fee of 0.35% per annum is payable on the adjusted commitment of the lenders. As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, $546.2 million and
$288.4 million, respectively, was outstanding under the U.S. AR Arrangement.
Under the terms of the U.S. AR Arrangement, we and two of our United States subsidiaries sell, on a revolving basis, our receivables (other than certain
specifically excluded receivables) to a wholly-owned, bankruptcy-remote subsidiary. The borrowings are funded by pledging all of the rights, title and
interest in and to the receivables acquired by our bankruptcy-remote subsidiary as security. Any amounts received under the U.S. AR Arrangement are
recorded as debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
SYNNEX Canada Limited, or SYNNEX Canada, has an accounts receivable securitization program with a bank to borrow up to CAD100.0 million, or
$77.2 million, in exchange for the transfer of eligible trade accounts receivable, on an ongoing revolving basis through May 10, 2020. The program includes
an accordion feature to allow requests to increase the bank's commitment by up to an additional CAD50.0 million, or $38.6 million. Any amounts received
under this arrangement are recorded as debt on our Consolidated Balance Sheets. The effective borrowing cost is based on the weighted average of the
Canadian Dollar Offered Rate plus a margin of 2.00% per annum and the prevailing lender commercial paper rates. In addition, SYNNEX Canada is obligated
to pay a program fee of 0.75% per annum based on the used portion of the commitment. We will pay a fee of 0.40% per annum for any unused portion of the
commitment below CAD60.0 million, or $46.3 million, and when the unused portion exceeds CAD60.0 million, or $46.3 million, a fee of 0.40% on the first
CAD25 million, or $19.3 million, of the unused portion and a fee of 0.55% per annum of the remaining unused commitment. As of May 31, 2018, there was
no borrowings outstanding under this arrangement. As of November 30, 2017, borrowings outstanding under this arrangement were $19.4 million.
In connection with the acquisition of Westcon-Comstor Americas effective September 1, 2017, we assumed a syndicated bank credit facility of some of
the North American subsidiaries we acquired, comprising a $350.0 million commitment for a revolving credit facility, maturing in January 2021. In May
2018, as a result of its integration activities, we terminated this facility and obtained an increase in its U.S. AR Arrangement as indicated earlier.
Certain of our Westcon-Comstor Latin American subsidiaries have revolving credit facilities with financial institutions in their respective countries (the
"Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities"). The Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities are denominated in local currency of such countries or United States Dollars
and aggregate to $77.6 million in revolving commitments. One of the Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities, comprising $40.0 million in revolving
commitments, matures in February 2020. The remaining Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities, aggregating $37.6 million in revolving commitments, mature
in one year or less. The terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary from country to country, depending on local market conditions, and the interest
rates range from 4.90% to 12.74%. As of May 31, 2018, there was no outstanding balance under the Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities. As of November 30,
2017, the aggregate balance outstanding under the Westcon-Comstor LATAM facilities was $78.4 million. Subsequent to May 31, 2018, facilities
aggregating $4.3 million in revolving commitments were terminated by the Company.
SYNNEX Infotec has a credit agreement with a group of financial institutions for a maximum commitment of ¥14.0 billion, or $128.7 million. The
credit agreement is comprised of a ¥6.0 billion, or $55.1 million, term loan and a ¥8.0 billion, or $73.5 million, short-term revolving credit facility. The
interest rate for the term loan and revolving credit facility is based on the Tokyo Interbank Offered Rate plus a margin of 0.70% per annum. The unused line
fee on the revolving credit facility is 0.10% per annum. This credit facility expires in November 2018. As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, the
balances outstanding under the term loan component of the facility were $55.1 million and $53.3 million, respectively. Balances outstanding under the
revolving credit facility were $34.0 million and $52.4 million, respectively, as of May 31, 2018 and
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November 30, 2017. The term loan can be repaid at any time prior to the expiration date without penalty. We have guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX
Infotec under this facility.
Our Indian subsidiaries have credit facilities with a financial institution to borrow up to an aggregate amount of $22.0 million. The interest rate under
the credit facilities is the higher of the bank's minimum lending rate or LIBOR plus a margin of 0.9% per annum. The credit facilities can be terminated at any
time by our Indian subsidiaries or the financial institution. We guarantee the obligations under these credit facilities. As of May 31, 2018, there were no
borrowings outstanding under these facilities. As of November 30, 2017, borrowings outstanding under these credit facilities were $12.0 million.
In the United States, we have a senior secured credit agreement with a group of financial institutions (the "U.S. Credit Agreement"). The U.S. Credit
Agreement, as amended from time to time, comprises of a $600.0 million commitment for a revolving credit facility and a $1,200.0 million term loan. We can
request incremental commitments to increase the principal amount of the revolving line of credit or term loan available under the U.S. Credit Agreement by
$400.0 million. The U.S. Credit Agreement matures in September 2022. The outstanding principal amount of the term loan is repayable in quarterly
installments of $15.0 million, with the unpaid balance due in full on the September 2022 maturity date. Interest on borrowings under the U.S. Credit
Agreement can be based on LIBOR or a base rate at our option, plus a margin. Margin for LIBOR loans can range from 1.25% to 2.00% and for base rate loans
can range from 0.25% to 1.00%, provided that LIBOR shall not be less than zero. Base rate is a variable rate which is the highest of (a) the Federal Funds
Rate, plus a margin of 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest announced, from time to time, by the agent, Bank of America, N.A, as its “prime rate,” or (c) the Eurodollar
Rate, plus 1.0%. The unused revolving credit facility commitment fee ranges from 0.175% to 0.30% per annum. The margins above our applicable interest
rates and the revolving commitment fee for revolving loans are based on our consolidated leverage ratio as calculated under the U.S. Credit Agreement. Our
obligations under the U.S. Credit Agreement are secured by substantially all of the parent company’s and its United States domestic subsidiaries’ assets and
are guaranteed by certain of our United States domestic subsidiaries. As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, balances outstanding under the term loan
component of the U.S. Credit Agreement were $1,170.0 million and $1,200.0 million, respectively. There were no borrowings outstanding under the
revolving credit facility as of either May 31, 2018 or November 30, 2017.
SYNNEX Canada has an uncommitted revolving line of credit with a bank under which it can borrow up to CAD35.0 million, or 27.0 million.
Borrowings under the facility are secured by eligible inventory and bear interest at a base rate plus a margin ranging from 0.50% to 2.25% depending on the
base rate used. The base rate could be a Banker's Acceptance Rate, a Canadian Prime Rate, LIBOR or US Base Rate. As of both May 31, 2018 and
November 30, 2017, there were no borrowings outstanding under this credit facility.
We also maintain other local currency denominated lines of credit and accounts receivable factoring arrangements with financial institutions at certain
locations outside the United States aggregating commitments of $31.1 million. Interest rates and other terms of borrowing under these lines of credit vary
from country to country, depending on local market conditions. Borrowings under these facilities are guaranteed by us or secured by eligible inventory or
accounts receivable. As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, borrowings outstanding under these facilities were $8.8 million and $15.2 million,
respectively.
The maximum commitment amounts for local currency credit facilities have been translated into United States Dollars at May 31, 2018 exchange rates.
In connection with the acquisition of Convergys, we entered into a debt commitment letter (the “Commitment Letter”), dated as of June 28, 2018, with
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Bank of America, N.A. (collectively, the “Initial Lenders”) and Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, pursuant to
which the Initial Lenders have committed to provide a 364-day senior secured term loan facility in an aggregate principal amount of up to $3.57 billion,
subject to the satisfaction of certain customary closing conditions (the “Bridge Facility”). The Bridge Facility is available (i) to pay for a portion of the
merger consideration, (ii) to directly or indirectly pay, repay, repurchase, or settle, as applicable, certain existing indebtedness of Convergys and its
subsidiaries, (iii) to refinance in full all outstanding obligations under the U.S. Credit Agreement, should the existing lenders not permit the incurrence of
debt in connection with the acquisition, and (iv) to pay the costs and expenses related to the merger with Convergys, the Bridge Facility and the transactions
being entered into or otherwise contemplated in connection therewith.
If we are required to utilize the Bridge Facility, then depending on the use of proceeds described above for which the Bridge Facility may be utilized,
amounts drawn thereunder will bear interest at an annual rate equal to LIBOR plus a margin which may initially range from 1.25% to 2.00%, depending on
our’ consolidated leverage ratio, which margin will be increased
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by 0.25% for each 90 days that elapse after the closing of the Bridge Facility, up to a maximum range of 2.00% to 2.75%. In addition, up to the lesser of (i)
the unfunded commitments under the Bridge Facility and (ii) $350.0 million are available to be drawn down during the 90 day period following the closing
of the Bridge Facility to repurchase or settle convertible debentures of Convergys that are tendered for repurchase or converted in connection with the
merger, and we will pay commitment fees on the undrawn amount of this commitment ranging from 0.15% to 0.25% based upon our consolidated leverage
ratio.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have financing programs in the United States and Japan under which trade accounts receivable of certain customers may be sold to financial
institutions. Available capacity under these programs is dependent upon the level of our trade accounts receivable eligible to be sold into these programs and
the financial institutions’ willingness to purchase such receivables. At May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, we had a total of $35.3 million and $52.1
million, respectively, of trade accounts receivable sold to and held by the financial institutions under these programs.
Covenant Compliance
Our credit facilities have a number of covenants and restrictions that, among other things, require us to maintain specified financial ratios and satisfy
certain financial condition tests. They also limit our ability to incur additional debt, make intercompany loans, pay dividends and make other types of
distributions, make certain acquisitions, repurchase our stock, create liens, cancel debt owed to us, enter into agreements with affiliates, modify the nature of
our business, enter into sale-leaseback transactions, make certain investments, enter into new real estate leases, transfer and sell assets, cancel or terminate any
material contracts and merge or consolidate. As of May 31, 2018, we were in compliance with all material covenants for the above arrangements.
Contractual Obligations
Our contractual obligations consist of future payments due under our loans (already recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheet), and operating lease
arrangements. As of May 31, 2018, there have been no material changes from our disclosure in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
November 30, 2017. For more information on our future minimum rental obligations under noncancellable lease agreements as of May 31, 2018, see Note 17
to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
As discussed in Note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, pursuant to the enactment of the TCJA, during the six months ended May 31, 2018,
we recorded an estimated one-time transition tax of $50.6 million on mandatory repatriation. This repatriation tax is payable in installments over eight years.
Guarantees
We, as the ultimate parent, guaranteed the obligations of SYNNEX Investment Holdings Corporation up to $35.0 million in connection with the sale of
China Civilink (Cayman), which operated in China as HiChina Web Solutions, to Alibaba.com Limited. The guarantee expires in fiscal year 2018.
We are contingently liable under agreements, without expiration dates, to repurchase repossessed inventory acquired by flooring companies as a result
of default on floor plan financing arrangements by our customers. There have been no repurchases through May 31, 2018 under these agreements and we are
not aware of any pending customer defaults or repossession obligations. As we do not have access to information regarding the amount of inventory
purchased from us still on hand with the customer at any point in time, our repurchase obligations relating to inventory cannot be reasonably estimated. As of
May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, accounts receivable subject to flooring arrangements were $94.7 million and $65.7 million, respectively. For more
information on our third-party revolving short-term financing arrangements, see Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Related Party Transactions
We have a business relationship with MiTAC Holdings, a publicly-traded company in Taiwan, which began in 1992 when MiTAC Holdings became
our primary investor through its affiliates. As of May 31, 2018 and November 30, 2017, MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates beneficially owned approximately
22% and 24%, respectively, of our outstanding common stock. Mr. Matthew Miau, the Chairman Emeritus of our Board of Directors and a director, is the
Chairman of MiTAC Holdings' and a director or officer of MiTAC Holdings' affiliates.
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The shares owned by MiTAC Holdings are held by the following entities:
As of May 31, 2018
(in thousands)

MiTAC Holdings(1)
Synnex Technology International Corp.(2)

4,998
3,860

Total

8,858

_____________________________________
(1) Shares are held via Silver Star Developments Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MiTAC Holdings. Excludes 364 thousand shares directly held by Mr. Matthew Miau and
216 thousand shares indirectly held by Mr. Matthew Miau through a charitable remainder trust.
(2) Synnex Technology International Corp. (“Synnex Technology International”) is a separate entity from us and is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan. Shares are held via
Peer Development Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Synnex Technology International. MiTAC Holdings owns a noncontrolling interest of 8.7% in MiTAC Incorporated,
a privately-held Taiwanese company, which in turn holds a noncontrolling interest of 14.1% in Synnex Technology International. Neither MiTAC Holdings nor Mr. Miau is
affiliated with any person(s), entity, or entities that hold a majority interest in MiTAC Incorporated.

MiTAC Holdings generally has significant influence over us regarding matters submitted to stockholders for consideration, including any merger or
acquisition of ours. Among other things, this could have the effect of delaying, deterring or preventing a change of control over us.
We purchased inventories from MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates totaling $49.9 million and $102.1 million, respectively, during the three and
six months ended May 31, 2018, and totaling $66.1 million and $117.1 million, respectively, during the three and six months ended May 31, 2017. Our sales
to MiTAC Holdings, and its affiliates totaled $0.5 million and $0.9 million, respectively, during the three and six months ended May 31, 2018, and
totaled $0.3 million and $0.7 million, respectively, during the three and six months ended May 31, 2017. In addition, we received reimbursements of rent and
overhead costs for facilities used by MiTAC Holdings amounting to $35,000 and $71,000, respectively, during the three and six months ended May 31,
2018, and $40,000 and $73,000, respectively, during the three and six months ended May 31, 2017.
Our business relationship with MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates has been informal and is not governed by long-term commitments or arrangements
with respect to pricing terms, revenue or capacity commitments. We negotiate pricing and other material terms on a case-by-case basis with MiTAC Holdings.
We have adopted a policy requiring that material transactions with MiTAC Holdings or its related parties be approved by our Audit Committee, which is
composed solely of independent directors. In addition, Mr. Matthew Miau’s compensation is approved by the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee, which is also composed solely of independent directors.
Synnex Technology International is a publicly-traded corporation in Taiwan that currently provides distribution and fulfillment services to various
markets in Asia and Australia, and is also our potential competitor. MiTAC Holdings and its affiliates are not restricted from competing with us.
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
For a summary of recent accounting pronouncements and the anticipated effects on our consolidated financial statements, see Note 2 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
ITEM 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk
There have been no material changes in our quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk during the six months ended May 31, 2018 from
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2017. For a discussion of the Company's exposure to market risk, reference is made
to disclosures set forth in Part II, Item 7A of our above-mentioned Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures. We maintain “disclosure controls and procedures,” as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file
or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in Securities and Exchange
Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures. In designing and evaluating our disclosure controls and
procedures, management recognized that disclosure controls and procedures, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the disclosure controls and procedures are met. Our disclosure controls and procedures have been designed to meet
reasonable assurance standards. Additionally, in designing disclosure controls and procedures, our management necessarily was required to apply its
judgment in evaluating the cost-benefit relationship of possible disclosure controls and procedures. The design of any disclosure controls and procedures
also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving
its stated goals under all potential future conditions.
Based on their evaluation as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our Chief Executive Officer (our principal
executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (our principal financial officer) have concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures
were effective at the reasonable assurance level.
(b) Changes in internal control over financial reporting. There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a15(f) under the Exchange Act) identified in connection with management’s evaluation during our last fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION
ITEM 1A. Risk Factors
You should carefully review and consider the information regarding certain factors that could materially affect our business, financial condition or
future results set forth under Part I-Item 1A (Risk Factors) in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended November 30, 2017. Except as set forth
below, there have been no material changes from the risk factors disclosed in our 2017 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Risks Related to the Proposed Acquisition of Convergys
After completion of the Merger, we may fail to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger, which could adversely affect the value of our
common stock.
The success of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement, (collectively the “Merger”) will depend, in part, on our ability to realize the
anticipated benefits from combining the businesses of SYNNEX and Convergys. Our ability to realize these anticipated benefits and cost savings is subject to
certain risks including:
•

Our ability to successfully combine the businesses of SYNNEX and Convergys;

•

whether the combined businesses will perform as expected;

•

the reduction of our cash available for operations and other uses and the incurrence of indebtedness to finance the acquisition;

•

the assumption of known and unknown liabilities of Convergys.

If we are not able to successfully combine the businesses of SYNNEX and Convergys within the anticipated time frame, or at all, the anticipated cost
savings and other benefits of the Merger may not be realized fully or at all or may take longer to realize than expected, the combined businesses may not
perform as expected, and the value of our common shares may be adversely affected.
SYNNEX and Convergys have operated and, until completion of the Merger, will continue to operate, independently, and there can be no assurances
that our businesses can be integrated successfully. It is possible that the integration process could result in the loss of key SYNNEX or Convergys employees,
the disruption of either or both company’s ongoing businesses, higher than expected integration costs and an overall post-completion integration process
that takes longer than originally anticipated. Specifically, issues that must be addressed to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger so the combined
business performs as expected include, among other things:
•

integrating the companies’ technologies, products and services;

•

identifying and eliminating redundant and underperforming operations and assets;

•

harmonizing the companies’ operating practices, employee development and compensation programs, internal controls and other policies,
procedures and processes;

•

addressing possible differences in business backgrounds, corporate cultures and management philosophies;

•

consolidating the companies’ corporate, administrative and information technology infrastructure;

•

managing the movement of certain businesses and positions to different locations;

•

maintaining existing agreements with customers and vendors and avoiding delays in entering into new agreements with prospective customers and
vendors;

•

consolidating offices of SYNNEX and Convergys that are currently in or near the same location.
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In addition, at times, the attention of certain members of either or both company’s management and resources may be focused on completion of the
Merger and the integration of the businesses of the two companies and diverted from day-to-day business operations, which may disrupt each company’s
ongoing business and the business of the combined company.
SYNNEX and Convergys may have difficulty attracting, motivating and retaining executives and other key employees in light of the Merger.
Uncertainty about the effect of the Merger on SYNNEX and Convergys employees may have an adverse effect on each of SYNNEX and Convergys
separately and consequently the combined business. This uncertainty may impair SYNNEX’ and Convergys’s ability to attract, retain and motivate key
personnel until the Merger is completed. Employee retention may be particularly challenging during the pendency of the Merger, as employees of SYNNEX
and Convergys may experience uncertainty about their future roles with the combined business. Furthermore, if key employees of SYNNEX or Convergys
depart or are at risk of departing, including because of issues relating to the uncertainty and difficulty of integration, financial security or a desire not to
become employees of the combined business, we may have to incur significant costs in retaining such individuals or in identifying, hiring and retaining
replacements for departing employees, and our ability to realize the anticipated benefits of the Merger may be adversely affected.
In order to complete the Merger, SYNNEX and Convergys must obtain certain governmental authorizations, and if such authorizations are not
granted, the Merger cannot be completed.
Completion of the Merger is conditioned upon the expiration or early termination of the waiting period relating to the Merger under the Hart-ScottRodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the “HSR Act”) and other similar antitrust laws in Canada, the European Community and the
Philippines, as well as certain other applicable laws or regulations and the governmental authorizations required to complete the Merger (the “Required
Governmental Authorizations”) having been obtained and being in full force and effect. Although SYNNEX and Convergys have agreed in the Merger
Agreement to use their reasonable best efforts, subject to certain limitations, to make certain governmental filings or obtain the Required Governmental
Authorizations, as the case may be, there can be no assurance that the relevant waiting periods will expire or authorizations will be obtained, and if such
authorizations aren’t obtained, the Merger will not be completed.
SYNNEX’ and Convergys’s business relationships may be subject to disruption due to uncertainty associated with the Merger.
Parties with which SYNNEX or Convergys do business may experience uncertainty associated with the Merger, including with respect to current or
future business relationships with us, Convergys or the combined business. SYNNEX’ and Convergys’s business relationships may be subject to disruption as
customers, vendors and others may attempt to negotiate changes in existing business relationships or consider entering into business relationships with
parties other than SYNNEX, Convergys or the combined business. These disruptions could have a material and adverse effect on the businesses, financial
condition, results of operations or prospects of the combined business, including a material and adverse effect on our ability to realize the anticipated
benefits of the Merger. The risk and adverse effect of such disruptions could be exacerbated by a delay in completion of the Merger or termination of the
Merger Agreement.
Failure to complete the Merger could negatively impact the stock price and the future business and financial results of SYNNEX.
If the Merger is not completed for any reason, including as a result of the Convergys shareholders failing to adopt the Merger Agreement or
SYNNEX stockholders failing to approve the issuance of the SYNNEX common stock in connection with the Merger, the ongoing business of SYNNEX may
be adversely affected and, without realizing any of the benefits of having completed the Merger, SYNNEX would be subject to a number of risks, including
the following:
•

We may experience negative reactions from the financial markets, including negative impacts on our stock price, and from our customers, vendors
and employees;

•

We may be required to pay Convergys a fee of $12.35 million if our stockholders fail to approve the issuance of SYNNEX stock in connection with
the Merger;

•

We will be required to pay certain transaction expenses and other costs relating to the Merger, whether or not the Merger is completed;
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•

the Merger Agreement places certain restrictions on the conduct of our business prior to completion of the Merger; and

•

matters relating to the Merger (including integration planning) will require substantial commitments of time and resources by our management,
which would otherwise have been devoted to day-to-day operations and other opportunities that may have been beneficial to us as an independent
company.

There can be no assurance that the risks described above will not materialize. If any of those risks materialize, they may materially and adversely
affect SYNNEX’ businesses, financial condition, financial results and stock price.
We may be targets of securities class action and derivative lawsuits relating to the Merger, which could result in substantial costs and may delay
or prevent the Merger from being completed.
Securities class action lawsuits and derivative lawsuits are often brought against companies that have entered into merger agreements. Even if the
lawsuits are without merit, defending against these claims can result in substantial costs and divert management time and resources. An adverse judgment
could result in monetary damages, which could have a negative impact on our liquidity and financial condition. Additionally, if a plaintiff is successful in
obtaining an injunction prohibiting consummation of the Merger, then that injunction may delay or prevent the Merger from being completed. Currently, we
are not aware of any securities class action lawsuits or derivative lawsuits being filed in connection with the Merger.
The proposed acquisition of Convergys and the incurrence of debt to fund the proposed acquisition of Convergys may impact our financial
position and subject us to additional financial and operating restrictions.
As of May 31, 2018, we had $1.8 billion of total debt. We expect to incur a substantial amount of additional debt in connection with the proposed
acquisition of Convergys. We expect that upon completion of the proposed acquisition of Convergys and the related financing transactions, our total debt
will increase to approximately $3.2 billion. If we are unable to raise financing on acceptable terms, we may need to rely on our bridge loan facility, which
may result in higher borrowing costs and a shorter maturity than those from other anticipated financing alternatives. In addition, if we are unable to obtain
long term debt financing on the terms we anticipate, then such alternative long term debt financing may subject us to additional financial and operating
covenants, which may limit our flexibility in responding to our business needs. The Company expects to obtain long term secured debt financing in lieu of
all or a portion of the commitments provided under the Bridge Facility. However, there can be no assurance the Company will be able to obtain such
permanent debt financing.
We will incur significant transaction and integration-related costs in connection with the Merger.
We expect to incur a number of non-recurring costs associated with the Merger and combining the operations of Convergys with our operations. We
will incur significant transaction costs related to the Merger. We also will incur significant integration-related fees and costs related to formulating and
implementing integration plans, including facilities and systems consolidation costs and employment-related costs. We continue to assess the magnitude of
these costs, and additional unanticipated costs may be incurred in the Merger and the integration of Convergys into our business. Although we expect that
the elimination of duplicative costs, as well as the realization of other efficiencies related to the integration of the businesses, should allow us to offset
integration-related costs over time, this net benefit may not be achieved in the near term, or at all.

ITEM 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
(a) None.
(b) None.
(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities:
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Period
March 1, 2018 to March 31, 2018

Total Number of Shares
Purchased

Average Price Paid per
Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of
Publicly Announced Plans
or Programs

Approximate Dollar Value
of Shares That May Yet Be
Purchased Under the Plans
or Programs

—

$

—

—

$

299,845,981

April 1, 2018 to April 30, 2018

410,000

$

101.68

410,000

$

258,157,002

May 1, 2018 to May 31, 2018

40,000

$

103.56

40,000

$

254,014,735

450,000

$

101.85

450,000

In June 2017, we announced that our Board of Directors authorized a three-year $300,000,000 share repurchase program pursuant to which the company may
repurchase its outstanding common stock from time to time in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. As of May 31, 2018, we had
repurchased 451,400 shares of our common stock at an average price of $101.87 per share for an aggregate purchase price of $45,985,265 since inception of
the stock repurchase program, and the remaining authorized amount for stock repurchases under this program was $254,014,735 by June 2020. Additionally,
prior to the completion of the proposed Convergys acquisition, our ability to repurchase shares of common stock may be limited.
For the majority of restricted stock awards and units granted by us, the number of shares issued on the date the restricted stock awards and units vest is net of
shares withheld to meet applicable tax withholding requirements. Although these withheld shares are not issued or considered common stock repurchases
under our stock repurchase program and therefore are not included in the preceding table, they are treated as common stock repurchases in our financial
statements as they reduce the number of shares that would have been issued upon vesting (see Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements).
The covenants of the Company's borrowings limit our ability to pay dividends, make other types of distributions and repurchase the Company's stock (see
Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements). We were in compliance with all material covenants as of May 31, 2018. Additionally, prior to the
completion of the proposed Convergys acquisition, our ability to issue dividends outside our normal practice may be limited.
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ITEM 6. Exhibits
Exhibit
Number

Description of Document

10.1

Employment Agreement by and between SYNNEX and Kevin Murai dated as of March 1, 2018.

10.2

Ninth Amendment to Credit Agreement among SYNNEX Corporation, the guarantors party thereto, the lenders party thereto and Bank of
America, N.A., in its capacity as Administrative Agent, an L/C Issuer and the Swing Line Lender dated May 7, 2018.

10.3†

Eighth Omnibus Amendment to Fourth Amended and Restated Receivables Funding and Administration Agreement and Third Amended
and Restated Receivables Sale and Servicing Agreement, dated as of May 7, 2018, by and among SIT Funding Corporation, SYNNEX
Corporation, the lenders party thereto and The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, LTD, as agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1
of the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 11, 2018).

31.1

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Executive Officer.

31.2

Rule 13a-14(a) Certification of Chief Financial Officer.

32.1*

Statement of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350).

101.INS

XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.CAL

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document.

101.DEF

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document.

101.LAB

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

101.PRE

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.

_____________________________________________

* In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986, Final Rule: Management’s Reports on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Certification of Disclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports, the certifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1
hereto are deemed to accompany this Form 10-Q and will not be deemed “filed” for purpose of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Such certifications will not be
deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent that the registrant specifically
incorporates it by reference.
† Portions of this exhibit have been omitted and filed separately with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
Date: July 6, 2018
SYNNEX CORPORATION
By:

/s/ Dennis Polk
Dennis Polk
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Duly authorized officer and principal executive officer)

By:

/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt
Chief Financial Officer
(Duly authorized officer and principal financial officer)
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Exhibit 10.1
SYNNEX Corporation
March 1, 2018
Mr. Kevin Murai
Dear Kevin:
SYNNEX Corporation (the “Company”) is pleased to continue your employment on the following terms:
1. Position. Effective on March 1, 2018 (the “Adjusted Employment Date”), you will be employed as Strategic Advisor, reporting to Dennis Polk.
You will be employed at the Company’s headquarters in Fremont, California. While you render services to the Company, you agree that you will not engage
in any other employment, consulting or other business activity without the prior written consent of the Company.
Your employment with the Company will be “at will,” meaning that either you or the Company may terminate your employment at any time and for any
reason, with or without cause.
2. Board Membership. You will continue to serve as a member of the Board of Directors of the Company. All directors are subject to election and removal by
the shareholders of the Company in accordance with its by-laws and Delaware law.
3. Compensation. The Company will provide you with compensation that is similar to the compensation paid to our independent directors, as determined by
the Board of Directors from time to time.
4. Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement. As a Company employee, you will be expected to abide by the Company’s rules and regulations.
You have previously signed a Proprietary Information and Inventions Agreement, which will continue in full force and effect.
5. Other Provisions. Sections 6 (Stock Ownership Guidelines), 11 (Restrictive Covenants), 12 (Litigation), 13 (Successors), 14 (Arbitration) and 15
(Miscellaneous Provisions) contained in your offer letter dated March 27, 2008, as amended on September 26, 2016, are incorporated by reference herein and
shall have the same force and effect as if set forth in full herein.
You may indicate your agreement with these terms and accept this offer by signing and dating this letter agreement.
Very truly yours,
SYNNEX Corporation
By:

/s/Dennis Polk
Dennis Polk
President and Chief Executive Officer

I have read and accept this employment offer on March 1, 2018:

/s/Kevin Murai
Kevin Murai

EXHIBIT 10.2
NINTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT
THIS NINTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this “ Amendment”), dated as of May 7, 2018 (“Ninth Amendment
Effective Date”), to the Credit Agreement referenced below is by and among SYNNEX CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the
“Borrower”), the Guarantors identified on the signature pages hereto, the Lenders identified on the signature pages hereto and BANK
OF AMERICA, N.A., in its capacity as Administrative Agent (in such capacity, the “ Administrative Agent”), an L/C Issuer and the
Swing Line Lender.
WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, credit facilities have been extended to the Borrower pursuant to the Credit Agreement (as amended, modified,
supplemented, increased and extended from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”) dated as of November 27, 2013 by and among the
Borrower, the Guarantors identified therein, the Lenders identified therein, the L/C Issuers identified therein and Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, Swing Line Lender and an L/C Issuer; and
WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested certain modifications to the Credit Agreement and the Lenders have agreed to the
requested modifications on the terms and conditions set forth herein.
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION of the premises and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows:
1. Defined Terms. Capitalized terms used herein but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings provided to such
terms in the Credit Agreement.
2. Amendments to Credit Agreement.
(a) The following definitions are hereby added to Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement in the appropriate alphabetical order to
read as follows:
“LIBOR Screen Rate” means the “LIBOR Rate” as defined and calculated pursuant to the definition of
“Eurodollar Base Rate.”
“LIBOR Successor Rate” has the meaning specified in Section 3.07.
“LIBOR Successor Rate Conforming Changes” means, with respect to any proposed LIBOR Successor Rate, any
conforming changes to the definition of Base Rate, Eurodollar Base Rate, Interest Period, timing and frequency of
determining rates and making payments of interest and other administrative matters as may be appropriate, in the
reasonable discretion of the Administrative Agent, to reflect the adoption of such LIBOR Successor Rate and to permit
the administration thereof by the Administrative Agent in a manner substantially consistent with market practice (or, if
the Administrative Agent determines that adoption of any portion of such market practice is not administratively feasible
or that no market practice for the administration of such LIBOR Successor Rate exists, in such other manner of
administration as the Administrative Agent agrees with the Borrower).

“Scheduled Unavailability Date” has the meaning specified in Section 3.07.
(b) The following definitions in Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement are hereby amended to read as follows:
“Excluded Property” means, with respect to any Loan Party, (a) any owned or leased real property, (b) unless
requested by the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders, any IP Rights for which a perfected Lien thereon is not
effected either by filing of a Uniform Commercial Code financing statement or by appropriate evidence of such Lien
being filed in either the United States Copyright Office or the United States Patent and Trademark Office, (c) unless
requested by the Administrative Agent or the Required Lenders, any personal property (other than personal property
described in clause (b) above) for which the attachment or perfection of a Lien thereon is not governed by the Uniform
Commercial Code, (d) the Equity Interests of any Foreign Subsidiary to the extent not required to be pledged to secure
the Obligations pursuant to Section 7.13(a), (e) any property which, subject to the terms of Section 8.09, is subject to a
Lien of the type described in Section 8.01(i) pursuant to documents which prohibit such Loan Party from granting any
other Liens in such property, (f) at any time the Permitted Securitization Transaction is outstanding, any Securitization
Related Property that is subject to the Permitted Securitization Transaction, (g) any lease, license, contract or other
agreement of a Loan Party if the grant of a security interest in such lease, license, contract or other agreement in the
manner contemplated by the Loan Documents is prohibited under the terms of such lease, license, contract or other
agreement or under applicable Law or would result in default thereunder, the termination thereof or give the other
parties thereto the right to terminate, accelerate or otherwise alter such Loan Party’s rights, titles and interests thereunder
(including upon the giving of notice or the lapse of time or both), other than to the extent (x) such prohibition or
limitation is rendered ineffective pursuant to the UCC or other applicable Law or principles of equity or (y) such
prohibition or limitation or the requirement for any consent contained in such lease, license, contract or other agreement
or applicable Law is eliminated or terminated to the extent sufficient to permit any such item to become Collateral or
such consent has been granted or waived or the requirement for such consent has been terminated, (h) government
licenses, state or local franchises, charters and authorizations and any other property and assets to the extent that the
Administrative Agent may not validly possess a security interest therein under, or such security interest is restricted by,
applicable Laws (including, without limitation, rules and regulations of any Governmental Authority or agency) or the
pledge or creation of a security interest in which would require governmental consent, approval, license or
authorization, other than to the extent such prohibition or limitation is rendered ineffective under the UCC or other
applicable Law notwithstanding such prohibition (but excluding proceeds of any such governmental licenses), (i)
particular assets if and for so long as, if, in each case, as determined by the Administrative Agent in its sole discretion,
the cost of creating or perfecting such pledges or security interests in such assets exceeds the practical benefits to be
obtained by the Lenders therefrom, (j) deposit, securities and commodities accounts having a monthly average balance
of less than $100,000 individually, and less than $1,000,000 in the aggregate, (k) any intent-to-use trademark
application prior to the filing of a “Statement of Use” or “Amendment to Allege Use” with respect thereto, to the extent,
if any, that, and solely during the period, if any, in which the grant of a security interest therein would impair the validity
or enforceability of such intent-to-use trademark application under applicable federal law, (l) assets of and Equity
Interests in any Person (other than a wholly-owned Subsidiary) to the extent not permitted by the terms of such

Person’s Organization Documents, (m) the Equity Interests of any Foreign Subsidiary to the extent (i) such Equity
Interests are pledged as collateral to secure the Indebtedness of a Foreign Subsidiary, (ii) such Indebtedness is permitted
under Section 8.03 and (iii) such Lien is a Permitted Lien, (n) any Investments maintained by the Borrower pursuant to
the Borrower’s unqualified deferred compensation arrangements permitted under Section 8.02(c), (o) margin stock
(within the meaning of Regulation U of the FRB), (p) deposit account number 1291841933 (the “Excluded Account”),
(q) any Receivables and Related Assets subject to a Permitted Supplier Finance Program, and (r) Equity Interests in the
Westcon-Datatec Entities (to the extent owned by any Loan Party). Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall any
asset or property of a Loan Party that is pledged by such Loan Party as collateral to secure the obligations of any Loan
Party under any Priority Debt constitute “Excluded Property” unless consented to by Required Lenders.
“Receivables and Related Assets” means (i) accounts receivable (including all rights to payment created by or
arising from the sales of goods, leases of goods or the rendition of services, no matter how evidenced (including in the
form of chattel paper) and whether or not earned by performance) and (ii) any interest in such accounts receivable and
all collateral securing such accounts receivable (including any originator accounts (as defined in the Securitization
Documents)), all contracts and contract rights, purchase orders, security interests, financing statements or other
documentation in respect of such accounts receivable, any guarantees, indemnities, warranties or other obligations in
respect of such accounts receivable, any other assets that are customarily transferred or in respect of which security
interests are customarily granted in connection with asset securitization transactions or factoring arrangements involving
receivables similar to such accounts receivable and any collections or proceeds of any of the foregoing.
(c) The definitions of “Management Fees”, “WGI”, “WGI Entities” and “WGI Facility” are hereby deleted from Section
1.01 of the Credit Agreement in their entirety.
(d) Section 3.07 of the Credit Agreement is hereby renumbered as Section 3.08 and a new Section 3.07 is hereby
added to the Credit Agreement to read as follows:
3.07 LIBOR Successor Rate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement or any other Loan
Documents, if the Administrative Agent determines (which determination shall be conclusive absent manifest error), or
the Borrower or Required Lenders notify the Administrative Agent (with, in the case of the Required Lenders, a copy to
Borrower) that the Borrower or Required Lenders (as applicable) have determined, that:
(a) adequate and reasonable means do not exist for ascertaining LIBOR for any requested Interest
Period, including, without limitation, because the LIBOR Screen Rate is not available or published on a current
basis and such circumstances are unlikely to be temporary; or
(b) the administrator of the LIBOR Screen Rate or a Governmental Authority having jurisdiction over
the Administrative Agent has made a public statement identifying a specific date after which LIBOR or the
LIBOR Screen Rate shall no longer be made available, or used for determining the interest rate of loans (such
specific date, the “Scheduled Unavailability Date”), or

(c) syndicated loans currently being executed, or that include language similar to that contained in this
Section 3.07, are being executed or amended (as applicable) to incorporate or adopt a new benchmark interest
rate to replace LIBOR,
then, reasonably promptly after such determination by the Administrative Agent or receipt by the Administrative Agent
of such notice, as applicable, the Administrative Agent and the Borrower may amend this Agreement to replace LIBOR
with an alternate benchmark rate (including any mathematical or other adjustments to the benchmark (if any)
incorporated therein), giving due consideration to any evolving or then existing convention for similar U.S. dollar
denominated syndicated credit facilities for such alternative benchmarks (any such proposed rate, a “LIBOR Successor
Rate”), together with any proposed LIBOR Successor Rate Conforming Changes and any such amendment shall become
effective at 5:00 p.m. on the fifth Business Day after the Administrative Agent shall have posted such proposed
amendment to all Lenders and the Borrower unless, prior to such time, Lenders comprising the Required Lenders have
delivered to the Administrative Agent written notice that such Required Lenders do not accept such amendment.
If no LIBOR Successor Rate has been determined and the circumstances under clause (a) above exist or the Scheduled
Unavailability Date has occurred (as applicable), the Administrative Agent will promptly so notify the Borrower and
each Lender. Thereafter, (x) the obligation of the Lenders to make or maintain Eurodollar Rate Loans shall be
suspended, (to the extent of the affected Eurodollar Rate Loans or Interest Periods), and (y) the Eurodollar Rate
component shall no longer be utilized in determining the Base Rate. Upon receipt of such notice, the Borrower may
revoke any pending request for a Borrowing of, conversion to or continuation of Eurodollar Rate Loans (to the extent of
the affected Eurodollar Rate Loans or Interest Periods) or, failing that, will be deemed to have converted such request
into a request for a Borrowing of Base Rate Loans (subject to the foregoing clause (y)) in the amount specified therein.
Notwithstanding anything else herein, any definition of LIBOR Successor Rate shall provide that if such LIBOR
Successor Rate is less than zero, such rate shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of this Agreement.
(e) The penultimate sentence in Section 7.12 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
Notwithstanding anything herein or in the other Loan Documents to the contrary, the Special Purpose Subsidiary shall
not be required to be a Guarantor or grant a security interest in its property to secure any of the Obligations.
(f) Section 8.01(ee) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
(ee) [reserved];
(g) Section 8.03(f) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
(f) Indebtedness under the Permitted Securitization Transaction; provided that (i) the Attributable Indebtedness
thereunder shall not exceed at any time outstanding an amount equal to $1,000,000,000 and (ii) the Permitted
Securitization Transaction shall be non-recourse to the Loan Parties other than with respect to purchase or repurchase
obligations

for breaches of representations and warranties, performance guaranties, and indemnity obligations and other similar
undertakings in each case that are customary for similar standard market accounts receivable;
(h) Section 8.03(q) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
(q) Indebtedness of SYNNEX Canada Limited and its Subsidiaries or WCSI in an aggregate principal amount
not to exceed C$200,000,000 at any time outstanding (including, for the avoidance of doubt, Indebtedness of SYNNEX
Canada Limited and its Subsidiaries or WCSI arising in connection with sales of Receivables and Related Assets
contemplated by Section 8.05(f) entered into by SYNNEX Canada Limited and its Subsidiaries or WCSI; provided that
that the outstanding principal amount of all Indebtedness arising in connection therewith does not exceed
C$200,000,000 (or its equivalent in another currency or currencies) at any time);
(i) Section 8.03(s) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
(s) [reserved]; and
(j) The last paragraph of Section 8.03 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 8.03 or otherwise, the Special Purpose Subsidiary shall
not contract, create, incur, assume or permit to exist any Indebtedness other than Indebtedness (x) existing from time to
time under the Permitted Securitization Transaction or (y) permitted under the Securitization Documents on the Sixth
Amendment Effective Date. For purposes of determining compliance with this Section 8.03, in the event that any
proposed Indebtedness meets the criteria of more than one of the categories of Indebtedness permitted in clauses (a)
through (t) above, the Borrower shall be permitted to divide or classify such item on the date of its incurrence, and from
time to time may reclassify, in any manner that complies with this Section 8.03 at such time.
(k) Section 8.05(f) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
(f) with respect to SYNNEX Canada Limited and its Subsidiaries or WCSI, Dispositions of Receivables and
Related Assets by way of a transaction or series of transactions permitted under Section 8.03(q) and pursuant to which
such receivables are sold to a third party which is not the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries, without recourse or with
limited recourse of such third party to any of the Borrower or any of its Subsidiaries; and
(l) Clause (f) in Section 8.08 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:
(f) [reserved];
(m) Section 8.19 of the Credit Agreement is hereby deleted in its entirety.
3. Conditions Precedent. This Amendment shall be and become effective as of date hereof when all of the conditions set forth
in this Section 3 shall have been satisfied:

(a) Execution of Counterparts of Amendment. Receipt by the Administrative Agent of executed counterparts of this
Amendment, properly executed by a Responsible Officer of the signing Loan Party (including the New Guarantor (as
hereinafter defined) and by the Required Lenders.
(b) Opinions of Counsel. Receipt by the Administrative Agent of favorable opinions of legal counsel to the New
Guarantor, addressed to the Administrative Agent and each Lender, dated as of the Ninth Amendment Effective Date.
(c) Organization Documents, Resolutions, Etc. Receipt by the Administrative Agent of the following:
(i) certificates of Responsible Officers of the New Guarantor attaching copies of the Organization Documents of
the New Guarantor certified to be true and complete as of a recent date by the appropriate Governmental Authority of
the state or other jurisdiction of its incorporation or organization, where applicable, and certified by a secretary or
assistant secretary of the New Guarantor to be true and correct as of the Ninth Amendment Effective Date;
(ii) such certificates of resolutions or other action, incumbency certificates (including specimen signatures)
and/or other certificates of Responsible Officers of the New Guarantor as the Administrative Agent may require
evidencing the identity, authority and capacity of each Responsible Officer thereof authorized to act as a Responsible
Officer in connection with this Amendment and the other Loan Documents to which the New Guarantor is a party; and
(iii) such documents and certifications as the Administrative Agent may require to evidence that the New
Guarantor is duly organized or formed, and is validly existing, in good standing and qualified to engage in business in
its state of organization or formation.
(d) Personal Property Collateral. Receipt by the Administrative Agent of the following:
(i) UCC financing statements for each appropriate jurisdiction as is necessary, in the Administrative Agent’s
discretion, to perfect the Administrative Agent’s security interest in the Collateral of the New Guarantor;
(ii) all certificates evidencing any certificated Equity Interests required to pledged, to the extent required by
Section 7.13 of the Credit Agreement and the Security Agreement, to the Administrative Agent, together with duly
executed in blank, undated stock powers attached thereto; and
(iii) duly executed notices of grant of security interest in the form required by the Security Agreement as are
necessary, in the Administrative Agent’s discretion, to perfect the Administrative Agent’s security interest in the United
States registered intellectual property of the New Guarantor.
(e) WGI Facility. Receipt by the Administrative Agent of satisfactory evidence that substantially simultaneously with
the closing of this Amendment, the WGI Facility has been repaid in full and the commitments thereunder have been terminated
and all Liens in connection therewith have been terminated.

(f) Fees. Receipt by the Administrative Agent, MLPFS and the Lenders of any fees required to be paid on or before the
Ninth Amendment Effective Date.
(g) Attorney Costs. The Borrower shall have paid all fees, charges and disbursements of counsel to the Administrative
Agent (directly to such counsel if requested by the Administrative Agent) to the extent invoiced prior to or on the Ninth
Amendment Effective Date, plus such additional amounts of such fees, charges and disbursements as shall constitute its
reasonable estimate of such fees, charges and disbursements incurred or to be incurred by it through the closing proceedings
(provided that such estimate shall not thereafter preclude a final settling of accounts between the Borrower and the
Administrative Agent).
4. Joinder of New Guarantor.
(a) Westcon Group North America, Inc., a New York corporation (the “ New Guarantor”) hereby acknowledges, agrees
and confirms that, by its execution of this Amendment, the New Guarantor will be deemed to be a party to the Credit Agreement
and a “Guarantor” for all purposes of the Credit Agreement, and shall have all of the obligations of a Guarantor thereunder as if
it had executed the Credit Agreement. The New Guarantor hereby ratifies, as of the date hereof, and agrees to be bound by, all
of the terms, provisions and conditions applicable to the Guarantors contained in the Credit Agreement. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing terms of this Section 4(a), the New Guarantor hereby jointly and severally together with the other
Guarantors, guarantees to the Administrative Agent, each Lender and each other holder of the Obligations, as provided in
Article IV of the Credit Agreement, as primary obligor and not as surety, the prompt payment and performance of the
Obligations in full when due (whether at stated maturity, as a mandatory prepayment, by acceleration or otherwise) strictly in
accordance with the terms thereof.
(b) The New Guarantor hereby acknowledges, agrees and confirms that, by its execution of this Amendment, the New
Guarantor will be deemed to be a party to the Security Agreement and an “Obligor” for all purposes of the Security Agreement,
and shall have all the obligations of an Obligor thereunder as if it had executed the Security Agreement. The New Guarantor
hereby ratifies, as of the date hereof, and agrees to be bound by, all of the terms, provisions and conditions contained in the
Security Agreement. Without limiting generality of the foregoing terms of this Section 4(b), to secure the prompt payment and
performance in full when due, whether by lapse of time, acceleration, mandatory prepayment or otherwise, of the Secured
Obligations (as defined in the Security Agreement), the New Guarantor hereby grants to the Administrative Agent, for the
benefit of the holders of the Secured Obligations, a continuing security interest in, and a right of set off against any and all right,
title and interest of the New Guarantor in and to the Collateral (as such term is defined in Section 2 of the Security Agreement)
of the New Guarantor.
(c) The New Guarantor hereby represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent that:
(i) Set forth on Schedule 1 is a list of all real property located in the United States that is owned or leased by the
New Guarantor as of the date hereof.
(ii)
Set forth on Schedule 2 is the chief executive office, U.S. tax payer identification number and
organizational identification number of the New Guarantor as of the date hereof.

(iii) The exact legal name and state of organization of the New Guarantor is as set forth on the signature pages
hereto.
(iv) Except as set forth on Schedule 3, the New Guarantor has not during the five years preceding the date
hereof (i) changed its legal name, (ii) changed its state of formation, or (iii) been party to a merger, consolidation or
other change in structure.
(v) Set forth on Schedule 4 is a list of all IP Rights registered or pending registration with the United States
Copyright Office or the United States Patent and Trademark Office and owned by the New Guarantor as of the date
hereof.
(vi) As of the Ninth Amendment Effective Date, the New Guarantor has no Commercial Tort Claims seeking
damages in excess of $3,000,000 other than as set forth on Schedule 5.
(d) The address of the New Guarantor for purposes of all notices and other communications is the address set forth for
the Borrower on Schedule 11.02 to the Credit Agreement.
(e) The New Guarantor hereby waives acceptance by the Administrative Agent and the Lenders of the guaranty by the
New Guarantor under Article IV of the Credit Agreement.
5. Amendment is a “Loan Document”. This Amendment is a Loan Document and all references to a “Loan Document” in the
Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents (including, without limitation, all such references in the representations and warranties
in the Credit Agreement and the other Loan Documents) shall be deemed to include this Amendment.
6. Representations and Warranties; No Default. Each Loan Party represents and warrants to the Administrative Agent and each
Lender that after giving effect to this Amendment, (a) the representations and warranties of each Loan Party contained in Article VI of
the Credit Agreement or any other Loan Document, or which are contained in any document furnished at any time under or in
connection herewith or therewith, are true and correct on and as of the date hereof, except to the extent that such representations and
warranties specifically refer to an earlier date, in which case they are true and correct as of such earlier date, and (b) no Default exists.
7. Reaffirmation of Obligations. Each Loan Party (a) acknowledges and consents to all of the terms and conditions of this
Amendment, (b) affirms all of its obligations under the Loan Documents and (c) agrees that this Amendment and all documents,
agreements and instruments executed in connection with this Amendment do not operate to reduce or discharge such Loan Party’s
obligations under the Loan Documents.
8. Reaffirmation of Security Interests. Each Loan Party (a) affirms that each of the Liens granted in or pursuant to the Loan
Documents are valid and subsisting and (b) agrees that this Amendment and all documents, agreements and instruments executed in
connection with this Amendment do not in any manner impair or otherwise adversely effect any of the Liens granted in or pursuant to
the Loan Documents.
9. No Other Changes. Except as modified hereby, all of the terms and provisions of the Loan Documents shall remain in full
force and effect.
10. Counterparts; Delivery. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts (and by different parties hereto in different
counterparts), each of which shall constitute an original, but all of which when

taken together shall constitute a single contract. Delivery of an executed counterpart of this Amendment by facsimile or other electronic
imaging means shall be effective as an original.
11. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be deemed to be a contract made under, and for all purposes shall be construed in
accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Ninth Amendment to be duly executed as of the date first above
written.
BORROWER:

SYNNEX CORPORATION,
a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary

GUARANTORS:

SYNNEX FINANCE HYBRID II, LLC,
a California limited liability company
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
LASTING HOLDINGS CORPORATION,
a California corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
HYVE SOLUTIONS CORPORATION,
a California corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
HYVE SOLUTIONS US GLOBAL HOLDING CORP,
a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
COMPUTERLAND CORPORATION,
a California corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
[Signature Pages Continue]
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CONCENTRIX GLOBAL HOLDINGS, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Director
CONCENTRIX CORPORATION,
a New York corporation
By:/s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, Legal
LICENSE ONLINE, INC.,
a California corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
WG-US HOLDCO, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
WESTCON GROUP, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
NEW GUARANTOR:

Westcon Group North America, Inc.,
a New York corporation
By: /s/ Simon Y. Leung
Name: Simon Y. Leung
Title: Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary
[Signature Pages Continue]
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ADMINISTRATIVE
AGENT:
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as Administrative Agent
By: /s/ Brenda Schriner
Name: Brenda Schriner
Title: Vice President
LENDERS:
BANK OF AMERICA, N.A.,
as a Lender, an L/C Issuer and the Swing Line Lender
By: /s/ Jeannette Lu
Name: Jeannette Lu
Title: Director
THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Diane Emanuel
Name: Diane Emanuel
Title: Managing Director
MUFG BANK, LTD (FORMALY KNOWN AS The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.),
as a Lender
By: /s/ Matthew Antioco
Name: Matthew Antioco
Title: Director
HSBC BANK USA, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Rumesha Ahmed
Name: Rumesha Ahmed
Title: Vice President
SUMITOMO MITSUI BANKING CORPORATION,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Masanori Yoshimura
Name: Masanori Yoshimura
Title: Director
BMO HARRIS BANK N.A.,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Michael Kus
Name: Michael Kus
Title: Managing Director
[Signature Pages Continue]
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WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Elizabeth Gaynor
Name: Elizabeth Gaynor
Title: Director
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Richard J Ameny Jr.
Name: Richard J Ameny Jr.
Title: Vice President
BANK OF THE WEST,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Roger Garduque
Name: Roger Garduque
Title: VP, CPO
COMPASS BANK,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Raj Nambiar
Name: Raji Nambiar
Title: Sr. Vice President
FIFTH THIRD BANK,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Suzanne Rode
_____
Name: Suzanne Rode
Title: Managing Director
TD BANK, N.A.,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Matt Waszmer
Name: Matt Waszmer
Title: Senior Vice President
THE TORONTO-DOMINION BANK, NEW YORK BRANCH,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Annie Dorval
Name: Annie Dorval
Title: Authorized Signatory
[Signature Pages Continue]
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BRANCH BANKING AND TRUST COMPANY,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Erron Powers
Name: Erron Powers
Title: Senior Vice President
KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION,
as a Lender
By: /s/ Thomas A Crandell
Name: Thomas A Crandell
Title: Senior Vice President
BANK OF CHINA, LOS ANGELES BRANCH,
as a Lender
By:
Name:
Title:
5

EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
I, Dennis Polk, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-Q of SYNNEX Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: July 6, 2018
/s/ Dennis Polk
Dennis Polk
President and Chief Executive Officer

EXHIBIT 31.2
CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
I, Marshall Witt, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Form 10-Q of SYNNEX Corporation;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a)

designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b)

designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c)

evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d)

disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the Audit Committee of the registrant’s Board of Directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a)all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b)any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: July 6, 2018
/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt
Chief Financial Officer

EXHIBIT 32.1
STATEMENT OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
UNDER 18 U.S.C. § 1350
We, Dennis Polk, the president and chief executive officer of SYNNEX Corporation (the “Company”), and Marshall Witt, the chief financial officer of the
Company, certify for the purposes of section 1350 of chapter 63 of title 18 of the United States Code that, to the best of our knowledge,
(i) the Quarterly Report of the Company on Form 10-Q for the period ended May 31, 2018 (the “Report”), fully complies with the requirements of
section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and
(ii) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the
Company.
Dated: July 6, 2018
/s/ Dennis Polk
Dennis Polk
/s/ Marshall W. Witt
Marshall W. Witt

